Chilliwack
School District

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District #33 (Chilliwack)
Regular Public Board Meeting

(Live Streamed; Attendees may be recorded)

AGENDA
September 23, 2025
5:30 pm

1.

4,

CALL TO ORDER - School District Office

1.1.  Call to Order — Welcome, Acknowledgment of Traditional Territory and Diversity

Statement
1.2.  Adoption of the Agenda
(THAT the agenda be adopted as circulated.)
1.3.  Reading and Approval of the Minutes
(THAT the minutes of the June 30, 2025 Regular Board Meeting be approved as
circulated.)

INFORMATION ITEMS

2.1. Audit Working Committee Report
2.2. Trustee Written Reports
2.3. BCSTA Report

2.4. Indigenous Education Council Report

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION — COMMENTS/QUESTIONS CONCERNING THE AGENDA

ACTION ITEMS

4.1. Framework for Enhancing Student Learning Report (FESL)

4.2. 2024-25 Audited Financial Statements, Accumulated Surplus & Financial Statement
Discussion and Analysis (FSDA)

4.3. Annual Five-Year Capital Plan, 2026-27 — Minor Capital

4.4. Property Disposal Bylaw

4.5. Signing Authority

4.6. Barrier Scan of Policies (200 & 300 Series)



PUBLIC PARTICIPATION — COMMENTS/QUESTIONS CONCERNING THE AGENDA

. SUPERINTENDENT’S UPDATE

. ADJOURNMENT

7.1. Next Board of Education Meeting: October 14, 2025 at 5:30pm



Chilliwack
School District

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
The Board of Education
School District #33 (Chilliwack)

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, June 30, 2025

Location: School District Office

Members Present: Chair David Swankey
Vice Chair Teri Westerby
Trustee Carin Bondar
Trustee Richard Procee
Trustee Willow Reichelt
Trustee Margaret Reid
Trustee Laurie Throness

Staff Present: Superintendent Rohan Arul-pragasam
Secretary Treasurer Simone Sangster
Assistant Secretary Treasurer Mark Friesen
Assistant Superintendent Kirk Savage
Assistant Superintendent Paula Jordan
Assistant Superintendent David Manuel

Director of Facilities & Transportation  Allan Van Tassel
Assistant Director of Human Resources Nadine Clattenburg
Assistant Director of Human Resources Rachael Green

Executive Assistant Talana Mclnally

1. CALL TO ORDER

1.1. Call to Order

The Board Chair called the meeting to order at 12:05 p.m. — Welcome,
Acknowledgment of Traditional Territory and Diversity Statement

1.2. Adoption of the Agenda

70.25 Moved by: Trustee Reid
Seconded by: Trustee Westerby

THAT the agenda be adopted as circulated.
CARRIED



1.3. Approval of the Minutes

71.25 Moved by: Trustee Throness
Seconded by: Trustee Westerby

THAT the minutes of the June 17, 2025 Regular Board Meeting and June 26, 2025
Special Regular Board Meeting be approved as circulated.
CARRIED

2. PRESENTATION ITEM

2.1. Strategic Plan 2025-2029

Superintendent Arul-Pragasam, along with Strategic Plan Refresh Consultant Janet
Carroll and Special Advisor Mark Point, a former Chief of the Skowkale First Nation,
presented the revised strategic plan.

3. INFORMATION ITEMS

3.1. Trustee Written Reports

Trustees submitted written reports listing key activities they’ve attended since the last
public board meeting as well as upcoming events.

3.2. BCSTA Report

Trustee Reid provided an update on matters related to the BCSTA.

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION — COMMENTS/QUESTIONS CONCERNING THE AGENDA

e Three students from Student Voice and Indigenous Student Voice & Agency (ISVA) shared their
positive experiences with the Strategic Plan Refresh process, highlighting:
o Focus on educating the whole student
o Equity and inclusion
o Mental and physical well-being
o Sense of belonging
o Indigenous students feeling heard
o District Parent Advisory Council appreciated:
o Strategic Plan Refresh process
o Continuation of the District’s values
o A former teacher and community member supported the Strategic Plan, especially its holistic
approach to supporting the whole student.

Meeting Recessed at 1:20 pm
Meeting called back to order at 1:27 pm

5. ACTION ITEMS

5.1. Lease Agreement Bylaw No. 2025-10




72.25

73.25

74.25

75.25

76.25

77.25

5.2.

5.3.

Moved by: Trustee Reichelt
Seconded by: Trustee Bondar

THAT the Board approve three readings of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) 103 —
45425 Luckakuck Way, Chilliwack, BC Lease Acquisition Bylaw, 2025, No. 2025-10 at
the June 30, 2025 Regular Board Meeting. (vote must be unanimous)

CARRIED

Moved by: Trustee Reichelt
Seconded by: Trustee Bondar

THAT the Board approve first, second and third reading and adopt School District No. 33
(Chilliwack) 103 — 45425 Luckakuck Way, Chilliwack, BC Lease Acquisition Bylaw, 2025,
No. 2025-10.

CARRIED

Policy 110 District Vision, Mission and Motto - Revised

Moved by: Trustee Reichelt
Seconded by: Trustee Westerby

THAT the Board of Education approve the revised Policy 110: District Purpose, Vision,
Motto and Values, as presented in the agenda package, to align with the 2025 Strategic
Plan refresh.

NO VOTE

Moved by: Trustee Throness
Seconded by: Trustee Procee

THAT the Board of Education add “Academic Achievement” to the core values as
outlined in the revised Policy 110.
DEFEATED

Moved by: Trustee Reichelt
Seconded by: Trustee Westerby

THAT the Board of Education approve the revised Policy 110: District Purpose, Vision,
Motto and Values, as presented in the agenda package, to align with the 2025 Strategic
Plan refresh.

CARRIED

Strategic Plan 2025-2029

Moved by: Trustee Reichelt
Seconded by: Trustee Bondar

THAT the Board of Education approve the revised Strategic Plan, 2025-2029 as
presented.
CARRIED



MEETING SUMMARIES

Meeting summaries were provided listing In-Camera items since the last Regular Public Board
Meeting.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION — COMMENTS/QUESTIONS CONCERNING AGENDA ITEMS

e A parent commented on the approved Strategic Plan, provides sense of belonging
e A parent commented on the approved lease bylaw, providing creative spaces for all
students and aligned with the District's Core Values

SUPERINTENDENT’S UPDATE

The Superintendent provided a brief update, thanking the Board of Education for supporting and
approving the revised Strategic Plan 2025-2029.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 2:27 p.m.

9.1. Next Board of Education Meeting Date

Monday, September 23, 2025
at 5:30 p.m.
School District Office

Board Chair

Secretary-Treasurer



The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Chilliwack
School District

INFORMATION REPORT
Regular Board Meeting

DATE: September 23, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: David Swankey, Audit Working Committee Chair
RE: AUDIT WORKING COMMITTEE REPORT

Trustee Swankey will provide an update on the Audit Working Committee meetings held on
September 9th and 12th, 2025.

At its September 12, 2025 meeting, the Audit Working Committee reviewed the 2024-25 Year End
Audited Financial Statements and related schedules.

The Audit Working Committee recommended:

THAT the Board approve the internal restrictions of accumulated operating surplus as presented in
Note 19 of the 2024-25 Year End Financial Statements.

THAT the Board approve the 2024-25 Year End Audited Financial Statements.

Partners in Learning!
10f1



Chilliwack
School District Pariners in Learning!

TRUSTEE REPORT

Trustee: David Swankey
Report Date: Sept 16t", 2025

KEY ACTIVITIES SINCE LAST BOARD MEETING

List of key dates/activities related to the Trustee role, including school visits and school initiatives/events,
committee attendance, conference attendance, efc.

July 2" — Attended BCSTA FV Branch President’s meeting as Past-President
Aug 20" — Participated inDistrict All-Leaders Retreat
Aug 218t — Attended BCSTA Board Mtg
Aug 22" — Participated in Board Working Session
Aug 25" — Attended BCSTA mtg with Minister Beare prior to school startup
Aug 27" — Joined members of the Board in Governor-to-Governor meeting with First Nations Leadership
Sept 31 — Met with FV Region BCPSEA Rep
Sept 4" — Attended BCSTA Board Chair’s Call
Sept 51 — Met with DPAC Chair
Sept 91" — Chaired BCSTA Finance & Audit Committee Mtg
o Presentation of Audited Financial Statements

e  Sept 9" — Attended Board Learning Session

o Preliminary Review of FESL Report
e Sept 9" — Chaired District Audit Working Committee Mtg

o Presentation of Audited Financial Statements
e Sept 12t — Joined Students and Staff for Kw'iyeqel Secondary School's Welcome Back BBQ
e Sept 12t — Visited Bridge Team Store Front on Luckakuck Way
e  Sept 14" — Attended Public Memorial for Dan Coulter

o Huge thanks to the Sardis Drum Line for their performance despite the elements
e Sept 16t — Attended BCSTA/BCPSEA Joint Board Meeting

The Chair/Vice Chair Committee met on June 30™, July 14™, Aug 8", Sept 29, 8t & 15,

UPCOMING EVENTS OF INTEREST TO THE BOARD

Sept 26M-27 2025 — 4" Annual Orange Shirt Day Pow wow at CSS

Oct 271-29 2025 — BCSTA Advocacy Mtgs

Nov 27t-29t 2025 — BCSTA Academy

Dec 4th-6"" 2025 — FNESC Annual Conference

April 9t-11th 2026 — BCSTA AGM

July 51-9t 2026 — CSBA National Trustee Gathering on Indigenous Education



Chilliwack
School District Partn

TRUSTEE REPORT

Trustee: Throness
Report Date: September 17, 2025

KEY ACTIVITIES SINCE LAST BOARD MEETING

List of key dates/activities related to the Trustee role, including school visits and school initiatives/events,
committee attendance, conference attendance, eftc.

®  August 20 All day leaders session

®  August 22 All day Board governance session

®  August 27 Governor to (Indigenous) governor meeting
® September 9 Audit working committee meeting

® September 9 Board learning session: FESL

® September 11 KSS welcome lunch

[

September 11 Audit Committee meeting



Chilliwack
School District Pariners in Learning!

TRUSTEE REPORT

Trustee: Teri Westerby
Report Date: September 9, 2025

KEY ACTIVITIES SINCE LAST BOARD MEETING

List of key dates/activities related to the Trustee role, including school visits and school initiatives/events,
committee attendance, conference attendance, eftc.

Chair / Vice Chair meetings: September 29, 8th, 15t 23rd
Audit Working Committee — September 12t

Board Governance Session — August 22™

All Leaders Meeting — August 20th

Chair / Vice Chair August Planning Meeting — July 14th

UPCOMING EVENTS OF INTEREST TO THE BOARD

e  Truth and Reconciliation Pow Wow at Chilliwack Secondary School August 26" + 27t



The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Chilliwack
School District

INFORMATION REPORT
Regular Board Meeting

DATE: September 23, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Margaret Reid, BCSTA Representative

RE: BC SCHOOL TRUSTEES ASSOCIATION (BCSTA) UPDATE

Margaret Reid will provide an update on BCSTA matters.

Partners in Learning!
10f1



The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Chilliwack
School District

INFORMATION REPORT
Regular Board Meeting

DATE: September 23, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: David Manuel, Assistant Superintendent

RE: INDIGENOUS EDUCATION COUNCIL UPDATE

IEC Meeting Summary — Sept 9, 2025
The IEC first meeting of the school year included discussion about the following items:

e Review of the IEC Terms of Reference with special attention to:

o filling the roles of Chair and Co-chair

o Band Council Resolutions (BCR) for IEC membership

o Student waiver forms
District Strategic Plan Update
Updates on the Steqoy:e & Longhouse Extension Program Partnership
Feedback on the Smudging Policy Review: Administrative Procedure 250
Representatives for the board committees for the upcoming year
Nominal roll and Joint Verification process

Next Meeting: Regular IEC meeting is scheduled for October 14, 2025

Partners in Learning!
10f1



The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Chilliwack
School District

DECISION REPORT
Regular Board Meeting

DATE: September 23, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Rohan Arul-pragasam, Superintendent

RE: FRAMEWORK FOR ENHANCING STUDENT LEARNING (FESL) REPORT
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Board of Education approve the Framework for Enhancing Student Learning Report to be
submitted to the Ministry by September 30, 2025.

BACKGROUND: Framework for Enhancing Student Learning:

The Framework for Enhancing Student Learning formalizes the planning and reporting expectations for
school districts in order to enhance student learning and success. The Framework reflects a public
commitment by Indigenous peoples and Indigenous rightsholders, education partners and communities to
work together to continuously improve student learning in relation to intellectual, human and social, and
career development. The Framework requires alignment of provincial K-12 accountability and evidence-
informed practices that enhance student learning, inclusivity and equity of learning outcomes.

The Framework supports a system-wide focus on improving student outcomes and life chances for every
student in British Columbia with a particular emphasis on Indigenous students, children and youth in care
and students with disabilities or diverse abilities. Having the Framework for Enhancing Student Learning as
a common reference point enables all parts of the system to take collective responsibility for making sure
students are learning well and are prepared for entering post-secondary studies or the working world.

Highlights of the Framework:

¢ The Framework for Enhancing Student Learning:

o Creates a system-wide focus on individual student learning to ensure all students in B.C.
achieve their full potential, with a particular focus on Indigenous learners, children and youth
in care, and students with disabilities or diverse abilities.

o Provides a structure to ensure that what is measured and reported is consistent with the
focus on student success and in keeping with the goals of education in the province of
British Columbia.

o Recognizes the individual learning needs of students and fosters equitable and inclusive
learning environments.

Partners in Learning!
10f2



Decision Report — FESL Report Regular Board Meeting - 2025-09-23

o Reflects local and societal contexts, enabling innovative and flexible responses in
classrooms, schools and districts with necessary supports from Ministry if required.

o Consistently uses evidence from a variety of sources to ensure responsive and transparent
decision-making.

¢ The Framework for Enhancing Student Learning (FESL) report:

o is a provincial requirement that all districts submit annually. The Enhancing Student Learning
Reports and Interim Progress Reports are due to the ministry between June 30 and September
30.

o Itis part of a continuous improvement cycle—measuring where we are now, identifying trends,
and informing the next steps in our work.

o The report is not meant to show immediate solutions, but to provide transparent data that helps
guide long-term improvement.

o A key focus is on data integrity—ensuring we use consistent, reliable measures across time and
across the province.

o The FESL Report connects directly to our Strategic Plan priorities and goals—particularly in
literacy, numeracy, well-being, and transitions.

o Data in the report highlights areas of growth as well as challenges that require focused
attention; both are important for accountability and learning.

o Trustees should view the FESL as a public-facing progress report that keeps us accountable,
not as a “final judgment” on success or failure.

Expectations:

The Ministry’s responsibilities for implementing the Framework for Enhancing Student Learning policy
include:

Conducting a review program to ensure boards of education continuously improve educational
outcomes;

Publishing educational outcomes and measures for each school district each year;

Collaborating with Indigenous peoples and key education stakeholders throughout the process; and
Working with boards to build capacity along a continuum of supports.

School Boards’ expectations for implementing the Framework for Enhancing Student Learning policy
include:

Developing and implementing a multi-year district strategic plan and individual school plans;
Using the district strategic plan to align annual operational plans;

Participating in a continuous improvement review program; and

Publishing and submitting an annual report to the Ministry approved by the Board of Education.

Framework For Enhancing Student Learning Report 2025

Partners in Learning!
20f2


https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2025-09/FESL%202025%20Wide%20v2%20compressed.pdf

The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Chilliwack
School District

DECISION REPORT
Regular Board Meeting

DATE: September 23, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Simone Sangster, Secretary Treasurer

RE: 2024-2025 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA)

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. THAT the Board of Education approve the interfund transfer of $528,183 from the Operating Fund to
Local Capital for the year ended June 30, 2025.

2. THAT the Board approve the Internal Restrictions of Accumulated Surplus included within Note 19 of
the 2024-25 Year End Financial Statements.

3. THAT the Board approve the 2024-2025 Audited Financial Statements as presented.

BACKGROUND:

On September 9 and 12, 2025, the Audit Working Committee reviewed the 2024-2025 Audited Financial

Statements, the accumulated surplus, and the supplementary Financial Statement Discussion & Analysis
(FSDA) with staff and representatives from KPMG. The committee was also given the opportunity to ask

questions.

The audit was conducted in accordance with Canadian Auditing Standards (CAS), and no significant risks
were identified. KPMG’s audit opinion is that the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30,
2025 presented are “prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial reporting provisions
of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia” with
a note that this differs from Canadian public sector accounting standards, which is standard for school
districts in British Columbia.

Interfund Transfer Local Capital

The transfer consists of $1,253,273 of tangible capital assets purchased and delivered in the fiscal year
(eg. vehicles and equipment) and $725,090 of capital projects that were identified and were expensed in
the prior year.

Partners in Learning!
10f4



Decision Report - 2024-2025 Audited Financial Statements, Accumulated Surplus and Financial Statement Discussion and
Analysis (FSDA) Regular Board Meeting - 2025-09-23

Accumulated Surplus
Accumulated Surplus is the amount to which net revenues from all previous years exceed expenses for all
previous years for all funds.

In the Operating Fund, the annual surplus may be increased by a current year surplus or creation of a
reserve, or it may be utilized (or appropriated). The net remaining surplus is carried forward and can be
used in the future.

In the Special Purpose Fund, the accumulated surplus is almost always zero because grant revenues are
only recognized and recorded when the related expenditures are incurred. The exception is endowment
funds, which are held for specific purposes. Any unspent portion of grants is recorded as a liability in
deferred revenue.

In the Capital Fund, revenues only offset amortization expense to the extent that assets were funded by
capital grants received from the Province. Since many capital purchases are funded by operating dollars
and recorded as transfers from other funds, the Capital Fund normally reports an annual deficit.

The accumulated surplus, by fund, over the last 5 years is made up of the following amounts:

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
Operating Fund 10,869,051 9,062,384 6,981,919 5,751,385 4,128,691
Local Capital
Fund 725,090 61,475 73,274 73,274
Invested in Capital
Assets 53,590,595 53,811,765 54,789,873 69,401,820 70,235,451
Total Accumulated
Surplus 64,533,007 63,672,500 61,906,528 75,299,740 74,510,677

Review of Accumulated Operating Surplus

In accordance with Policy 601 Accumulated Operating Surplus and Procedure 601 Accumulated Operating
Surplus, the Board of Education will undertake an annual review of the Accumulated Operating Surplus
and Local Capital. The report will include the opening balance, planned uses, actual uses and closing
balances by the categories identified in the procedure. The Audit committee will provide a recommendation
on the reports and any allocations or appropriations prior to consideration by the Board.

Actual 2025 March Amended
Projection Budget 2025

Opening Balance 9,062,384 9,062,384 9,062,384
Operating Revenue 197,869,109 197,054,420 196,471,236
Operating Expenses (195,534,259) (197,626,663) (198,072,989)
Annual Surplus (Deficit) 2,334,850 (572,242) (1,601,753)
Capital Asset (1,253,273) (1,552,506) (1,552,506)
Purchases
Transfers to Other 725,090 725,091 725,091
Funds
Total Surplus (Deficit) 1,806,667 (1,397,847) (2,429,168)
Closing Balance 10,869,051 7,664,537 6,633,216

Partners in Learning!

20f4


mailto:https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2024-04/601%20Accumulated%20Operating%20Surplus.pdf
mailto:https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2024-04/601%20AP%20Accumulated%20Operating%20Surplus.pdf
mailto:https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2024-04/601%20AP%20Accumulated%20Operating%20Surplus.pdf

Decision Report - 2024-2025 Audited Financial Statements, Accumulated Surplus and Financial Statement Discussion and
Analysis (FSDA) Regular Board Meeting - 2025-09-23

The Accumulated Operating Surplus may be classified according to internal restrictions in future years, as
defined in the Procedure. The remaining Surplus after these restrictions is called Unrestricted Accumulate
Operating Surplus. A target range of 2 to 4 percent of annual operating expenses for the Unrestricted
Accumulated Surplus has been established under the Procedure.

As of June 30, 2025 the unrestricted balance is $7,930,367 or 4.15% of total budgeted operating expenses
of $191,218,969 (4.06% of actual operating expenses). It is within the prescribed range.

2025 2024
Restricted School-based carry forwards 1,793,342 1,456,608
Restricted Unspent Indigenous Targeted 312,591 235,784
Funds
Restricted Unspent Indigenous Education 91,196 -
Council Funds
Restricted Unspent Jordan’s Principle Funds 227,102 -
Restricted for Early Learning Initiatives 214,453 119,826
Restricted for New Technology 300,000 -
Total Internally Restricted 2,938,684 1,812,218
Unrestricted 7,930,367 7,250,166
Total Accumulated Operating Surplus 10,869,051 9,062,384
Annual Budget Operating Expenses 191,218,969 179,796,583
Unrestricted Surplus as a percentage of 4.15% 4.03%
Budgeted Operating Expenses
2025-26 Budget Surplus Appropriation (696,663)
June 30, 2026 Estimated Accumulated 7,233,895
Unrestricted Operating Surplus
Unrestricted Surplus as a percentage of 3.59%

Budgeted Operating Expenses

At the time of preparing the 2025-26 budget we projected that the unrestricted accumulated surplus as of
June 30, 2024 would be $6,493,188. Our 2025-26 budget projects a budget deficit of ($696,663), use of
school reserves of $643,000 and capital asset purchases of $555,000 for a net reduction or appropriation
of unrestricted accumulated surplus of $696,663. At the time of budget approval, the unrestricted
accumulated surplus at the end of the 2025-26 school year was estimated as $5,796,524 of 2.91%.

Our 2025-26 projected deficit and use of reserves remains unchanged, however given the actual 2024-25
unrestricted accumulated surplus was $7,930,367, our updated estimate for the unrestricted accumulated
surplus at the end of the 2025-26 school year is now $7,233,895 or 3.63%. of budgeted operating
expenditures. This is within the prescribed policy range.

Audited Financial Statements

The audited financial statements reflect the district’s financial position and results in compliance with
financial reporting requirements. These statements highlight key areas of revenue, expenditure, and overall
financial performance for the fiscal year, ensuring transparency and accountability.

Partners in Learning!
3o0f4


https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2025-09/Audited%20Financial%20Statemens%20-%20with%20Added%20Notes%20-%20FINAL%20BA.pdf

Decision Report - 2024-2025 Audited Financial Statements, Accumulated Surplus and Financial Statement Discussion and
Analysis (FSDA) Regular Board Meeting - 2025-09-23

Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis

The supplementary Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis (FSDA) report is provided in the above
link along with the audited financial statements. The FSDA is unaudited; however; the commentary within
the FSDA is consistent with the audited financial statements.

Multi-Year Financial Plan
The District’s Multi-Year Financial Plan reflects the current year budget and budgets for the following two

years based on a consistent service level.

Partners in Learning!
4 0f4


https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2025-09/Financial%20Statement%20Discussion%20Analysis%202024-25%20DRAFT.pdf
https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2025-09/2025-26%20Multi-year%20Financial%20Plan-PUBLISH_0.pdf
https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2025-09/2025-26%20Multi-year%20Financial%20Plan-PUBLISH_0.pdf

Audited Financial Statements of

School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

And Independent Auditors’ Report thereon

June 30, 2025

DRAFT - Not Finalized



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)
June 30, 2025

Table of Contents

Management REPOTT .......coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e
Independent AUditors' REPOIt ........oocuiiuieiiiieiieieeieie e e
Statement of Financial Position - Statement 1 ..........ccccooceeiieiienieiieriee e
Statement of Operations - StatemMent 2 .........ccceevuirieriieieiieie et
Statement of Changes in Net Debt - Statement 4 .........ccoccoevieienieieniee e
Statement of Cash Flows - Statement 5 ..........cccooiriiiieiiiieeeeeee e
Notes to the Financial Statements ...........cccooieviiierieiienieieeeee e

Auditors' Comments on Supplementary Financial Information .............ccccoocveienene.

Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund - Schedule 1 (Unaudited) ........cccovieviiiieniiienieieccee e

Schedule of Operating Operations - Schedule 2 (Unaudited) ........cccoceveevierienienncns
Schedule 2A - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source (Unaudited) ......

Schedule 2B - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object (Unaudited) .......

Schedule 2C - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object (Unaudited) .........ccccoeveiieiiiienienieieeiericeeeeeens,

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations - Schedule 3 (Unaudited) .........cccccoevenene

Schedule 3A - Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object (Unaudited) ..........cccoviroienieiiiienenieienens

Schedule of Capital Operations - Schedule 4 (Unaudited) .......ccccooeeevieiiiienieienene
Schedule 4A - Tangible Capital Assets (Unaudited) .......cccccveveevverieniennnne.
Schedule 4B - Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress (Unaudited) .....

Schedule 4C - Deferred Capital Revenue (Unaudited) ..........cceevvverieenennee.

Schedule 4D - Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue (Unaudited)

DRAFT - Not Finalized

10

11

12

14

15

19

20

21

22

23



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

MANAGEMENT REPORT
DRAFT

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) have been prepared by
management in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and
Accountability Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the
Province of British Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are
management's responsibility. Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and
schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained
in the financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's
judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with
certainty until future periods.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial
information is produced.

The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) (called the "Board") is responsible for ensuring
that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and exercises these
responsibilities through the Board. The Board reviews internal financial statements on a monthly basis and
externally audited financial statements yearly.

The external auditors, KPMG LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements. The external auditors have
full and free access to financial management of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) and meet when required.
The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination
and their opinion on the School District's financial statements.

On behalf of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Date Si

Date Si

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer Date Signed

DRAFT - Not Finalized Page 1



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Statement 1

Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2025
2025 2024
Actual Actual
$ $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 51,053,163 46,720,745
Accounts Receivable
Due from Province - Ministry of Education and Child Care 2,949,269 456,669
Due from Province - Other
Due from First Nations 19,851 602,330
Other (Note 3) 737,611 864,040
Investments in Government Business Enterprises
Portfolio Investments
Inventories for Resale
District Entered
Total Financial Assets 54,759,894 48,643,784
Liabilities
Bank Overdraft
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Due to Province - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Due to Province - Other
Other (Note 4) 23,502,594 20,433,150
Unearned Revenue (Note 5) 2,682,065 2,695,596
Deferred Revenue (Note 6) 4,817,454 4,059,276
Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 7) 253,584,548 243,531,344
Employee Future Benefits (Note 8) 5,366,838 4,936,947
Asset Retirement Obligation (Note 9) 14,161,408 13,870,683
Debt
Capital Lease Obligations
Other Liabilities 1,817,082 1,776,025
District Entered
Total Liabilities 305,931,989 291,303,021
Net Debt (251,172,095) (242,659,237)
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible Capital Assets (Note 10) 314,727,083 305,092,985
Restricted Assets (Endowments) (Note 12) 73,261 73,261
Prepaid Expenses 904,758 1,165,491
Supplies Inventory
Other Assets
Total Non-Financial Assets 315,705,102 306,331,737
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) (Note 19) 64,533,007 63,672,500

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) is comprised of:
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations 64,533,007 63,672,500
Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

64,533,007 63,672,500

Unrecognized Assets

Contractual Obligations (Note 16)
Contractual Rights

Measurement Uncertainty
Contingent Assets

Contingent Liabilities (Note 17)

Approved by the Board

DRAFT - Not Finalized The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 3




te Signed Statement 1
te Signed

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer Date Signed

DRAFT - Not Finalized The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 3



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Statement of Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Statement 2

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 15)
$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 219,998,352 219,911,845 204,448,827
Other 472,225 387,941 304,880

Municipal Grants Spent on Sites 3,000,000 240,651

Federal Grants 380,788

Tuition 2,905,550 3,019,487 2,185,115

Other Revenue 8,744,331 9,395,658 8,932,293

Rentals and Leases 250,000 342,738 219,735

Investment Income 1,171,701 1,242,385 1,564,149

Income (Loss) from Investments in Government Business Enterprises

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 10,276,420 10,293,124 10,153,137

District Entered

Total Revenue 246,818,579 245,214,617 227,808,136
Expenses (Note 18)

Instruction 201,212,458 197,993,743 182,090,992

District Administration 7,238,086 6,823,628 5,973,222

Operations and Maintenance 32,316,922 32,834,825 31,873,613

Transportation and Housing 6,074,328 6,701,914 6,104,337

Debt Services

Write-off/down of Buildings and Sites

District Entered

Total Expense 246,841,794 244,354,110 226,042,164
Surplus (Deficit) for the year, before endowment contributions (23,215) 860,507 1,765,972
Endowment Contributions
Surplus (Deficit) for the year (23,215) 860,507 1,765,972
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 63,672,500 61,906,528
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 64,533,007 63,672,500

DRAF T - Not Finalized

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 4



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses

Statement 3

Year Ended June 30, 2025
2025 2024
Actual Actual
$ $

Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (Losses) at beginning of year
Unrealized Gains (Losses) attributable to:

Portfolio Investments

District Entered
Amounts Reclassified to the Statement of Operations:

Portfolio Investments

District Entered

Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) for the year

Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (Losses) at end of year

DRAFT - Not Finalizea The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 4



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)
Statement of Changes in Net Debt

Statement 4

Year Ended June 30, 2025
2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 15)
S $ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (23,215) 860,507 1,765,972
Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (22,764,148) (21,642,216) (11,365,452)

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 11,697,882 12,008,118 11,532,665

Net carrying value of Tangible Capital Assets disposed of

Write-down carrying value of Tangible Capital Assets

District Entered

District Entered

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets (11,066,266) (9,634,098) 167,213
Acquisition of Prepaid Expenses - (904,763) (1,165,491)
Use of Prepaid Expenses - 1,165,496 530,758
Acquisition of Supplies Inventory
Use of Supplies Inventory
Acquisition of Other Assets
Use of Other Assets
Endowment Contributions
District Entered
District Entered

Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets - 260,733 (634,733)
(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt, before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) (11,089,481) (8,512,858) 1,298,452
Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses)
(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt (8,512,858) 1,298,452
Net Debt, beginning of year (242,659,237) (243,957,689)
Net Debt, end of year (251,172,095) (242,659,237)

DRAF T - Not Finalized

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 5



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Statement 5

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2025
2025 2024
Actual Actual
$ $

Operating Transactions
Surplus (Deficit) for the year 860,507 1,765,972
Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital
Decrease (Increase)
Accounts Receivable (1,783,692) (1,030,596)
Inventories for Resale
Supplies Inventories

Prepaid Expenses 260,732 (634,733)
Increase (Decrease)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 3,069,444 2,739,215
Unearned Revenue (13,531) 852,959
Deferred Revenue 758,178 730,165
Employee Future Benefits 429,891 368,960
Asset Retirement Obligations 290,725 -
Other Liabilities 41,058 412,349
Loss (Gain) on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 12,008,118 11,532,665
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (10,293,124) (10,153,137)
Recognition of Deferred Capital Revenue Spent on Sites (240,651)
Write-Off/down of Buildings and Sites
Bylaw Capital Spent on Non Capital Items (3,008,457) (2,776,510)
District Entered
Total Operating Transactions 2,379,198 3,807,309

Capital Transactions

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (8,529,945) (7,833,372)
Tangible Capital Assets -WIP Purchased (12,821,546) (3,532,080)
District Portion of Proceeds on Disposal

Addition due to change in ARO estimate (290,725) -
District Entered

Total Capital Transactions (21,642,216) (11,365,452)

Financing Transactions
Loan Proceeds
Loan Payments

Capital Revenue Received 23,595,436 14,123,691
District Entered
District Entered
Total Financing Transactions 23,595,436 14,123,691

Investing Transactions
Decrease (Increase) in Mortgage Receivable
Proceeds on Disposal of Portfolio Investments
Investments in Portfolio Investments
Decrease (Increase) in Investments in Government Business Enterprises
District Entered
District Entered
Total Investing Transactions - -

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,332,418 6,565,548
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 46,720,745 40,155,197
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 51,053,163 46,720,745

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year, is made up of:
Cash
Cash Equivalents 51,053,163 46,720,745
Bank Overdraft

51,053,163 46,720,745

Supplementary Cash Flow Information

DRAFT - Not Finalized The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 6



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The School District, established on April 12, 1946 operates under authority of the School Act of
British Columbia as a corporation under the name of "The Board of Education of School District
No. 33 (Chilliwack)", and operates as "School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)." A board of education
(“Board”) elected for a four-year term governs the School District. The School District provides
educational programs to students enrolled in schools in the District, and is principally funded by the
Province of British Columbia through the Ministry of Education and Child Care. School District
No. 33 (Chilliwack) is exempt from federal and provincial corporate income taxes.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the School District are prepared by management in accordance with the
basis of accounting described below. Significant accounting policies of the School District are as
follows:

a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget
Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia supplemented by
Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the Province of British Columbia Treasury Board.

The Budget Transparency and Accountability Act requires that the financial statements be
prepared in accordance with the set of standards and guidelines that comprise generally accepted
accounting principles for senior governments in Canada, or if the Treasury Board makes a
regulation, the set of standards and guidelines that comprise generally accepted accounting
principles for senior governments in Canada as modified by the alternate standard or guideline or
part thereof adopted in the regulation.

Regulation 257/2010 requires all tax-payer supported organizations in the Schools, Universities,
Colleges and Hospitals sectors to adopt Canadian public sector accounting standards without any
PS4200 elections effective their first fiscal year commencing after January 1, 2012.

Regulation 198/2011 requires that restricted contributions received or receivable for acquiring or
developing a depreciable tangible capital asset or contributions in the form of a depreciable
tangible capital asset are to be deferred and recognized in revenue at the same rate that
amortization of the related tangible capital asset is recorded.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Page 9



b)

d)

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

For British Columbia tax-payer supported organizations, these contributions include government
transfers and externally restricted contributions.

The accounting policy requirements under Regulation 198/2011 are significantly different from
the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards which requires that:

e government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be recognized
as revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the eligibility criteria have
been met in accordance with public sector accounting standard PS3410; and

e externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the
resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with public sector
accounting standard PS3100.

As a result, revenue recognized in the statement of operations and certain related deferred capital
contributions would be recorded differently under Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits in the Provincial Ministry of Finance Central
Deposit Program that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to
insignificant risk of change in value. These cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investing.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are measured at amortized cost and shown net of allowance for doubtful
accounts.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods and
receipt of proceeds for services or products to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be
recognized in that future period when the courses, services, or products are provided.

Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue

Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description of
restricted contributions in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury
Board. When restrictions are met, deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in
a manner consistent with the circumstances and evidence used to support the initial recognition
of the contributions received as a liability as detailed in Note 2 (k).

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue (cont’d)

Page 10



2)

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as deferred
capital revenue and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the statement of
operations. This accounting treatment is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian
public sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be recognized as
revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the
transfer contains a stipulation that creates a liability in which case the transfer is recognized as
revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The District recognizes the fair value of an Asset Retirement Obligation (“ARO”) in the period
in which it incurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement of tangible capital assets.
Certain building assets contain asbestos and other hazardous materials, and it is the District’s
intention to, if necessary, remediate any asbestos and other hazardous materials upon disposal of
a tangible capital building asset. The estimated fair value of an ARO is capitalized as part of the
related tangible capital asset and depreciated on the same basis as the underlying asset. ARO is
adjusted for the passage of time, which is recognized as accretion expense, and for revisions to
the timing or the amount of the estimated liability. Actual costs incurred are charged against the
ARO to the extent of the liability recorded. Differences between the actual costs incurred and the
liability are recognized in the excess of revenues over expenses when remediation is completed.

Employee Future Benefits

The School District provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-vested
benefits for certain employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements. The School
District accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and non-vested benefits
under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-
vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits.
The benefits cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method pro-rated on
service and using management’s best estimate of expected salary escalation, termination rates,
retirement rates and mortality. The discount rate used to measure obligations is based on the cost
of borrowing. The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the
expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of active employees covered under the
plan.

The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2025 and projected
to March 31, 2025. The next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2028 for use at

June 30, 2028. For the purposes of determining the financial position of the plans and the
employee future benefit costs, a measurement date of March 31 was adopted for all periods
subsequent to July 1, 2004.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

Employee Future Benefits (cont’d)

Page 11



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The School District and its employees make contributions to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and
Municipal Pension Plan. The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are
not separated. The costs are expensed as incurred.

h) Tangible Capital Assets

The following criteria apply:

NOTE 2

Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost which includes
amounts that are directly related to the acquisition, design, construction, development,
improvement or betterment of the assets. Cost also includes overhead directly
attributable to construction as well as interest costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of the asset.

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of
donation, except in circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined,
which are then recognized at nominal value. Transfers of capital assets from related
parties are recorded at carrying value.

Work-in-progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at substantial
completion.

Tangible capital assets are written down to residual value when conditions indicate they
no longer contribute to the ability of the School District to provide services or when the
value of future economic benefits associated with the sites and buildings are less than
their net book value. The write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the Statement of
Operations.

Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written-off.

Works of art, historic assets and other intangible assets are not recorded as assets in these
financial statements.

The cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets (excluding sites), is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. It is management’s
responsibility to determine the appropriate useful lives for tangible capital assets. These
useful lives are reviewed on a regular basis or if significant events initiate the need to
revise. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Furniture & Equipment 10 years
Vehicles 10 years
Computer Software 5 years
Computer Hardware 5 years

Amortization of tangible capital assets are taken at one-half the normal annual rate in the
year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1) Prepaid Expenses

Page 12



)

k)

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Prepaid expenses consist of unexpired insurance premiums and other prepaid amounts which
will be amortized over the term of the policies, or in the period the actual expense relates to,
respectively.

Materials and supplies held for use within the School District are included as a prepaid expense
and stated at acquisition cost and are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit
from it.

Funds and Reserves

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board are set aside in accumulated surplus for future
operating and capital purposes. Transfers to and from funds and reserves are an adjustment to
the respective fund when approved (see Note 13 — Interfund Transfers and Note 19 —
Accumulated Surplus).

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transactions or events
occurred that gave rise to the revenues, the amounts are considered to be collectible and can be
reasonably estimated.

Contributions received where eligibility criteria have been met are recognized as revenue except
where the contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described below. Eligibility criteria are
the criteria that the School District has to meet in order to receive the contributions including
authorization by the transferring government.

For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their use,
revenue is recognized as follows:
e Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and
recognized as revenue in the year related expenses are incurred,
e Contributions restricted for site acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites are
purchased, and
e Contributions restricted for tangible capital asset acquisitions other than sites are
recorded as deferred capital revenue and amortized over the useful life of the related
assets.

Donated tangible capital assets other than sites are recorded at fair market value and amortized
over the useful life of the assets. Donated sites are recorded as revenue at fair market value when
received or receivable.

Page 13



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k) Revenue Recognition (cont’d)

The accounting treatment for restricted contributions is not consistent with the requirements of
Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be
recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met
unless the transfer contains a stipulation that meets the criteria for liability recognition in which
case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished.

Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service is
performed is deferred and recognized when the fee is earned, or service performed. All other
revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise
to the revenues.

Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or
related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue
balance.

1) Expenses

Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services received
during the year is expensed.

Allocation of Costs

e Operating expenses are reported by function, program, and object. Whenever possible,
expenses are determined by actual identification. Additional costs pertaining to specific
instructional programs, such as special and aboriginal education, are allocated to these
programs. All other costs are allocated to related programs.

e Actual salaries of personnel assigned to two or more functions or programs are allocated
based on the time spent in each function and program. School-based clerical salaries are
allocated to school administration and partially to other programs to which they may be
assigned. Principals and Vice-Principals salaries are allocated to school administration
and may be partially allocated to other programs to recognize their other responsibilities.

e Employee benefits and allowances are allocated to the same programs, and in the same
proportions, as the individual’s salary.

e Supplies and services are allocated based on actual program identification.

Categories of Salaries
e Principals, Vice-Principals, and Directors of Instruction employed under an
administrative contract are categorized as Principals and Vice-Principals.
e Superintendents, Secretary-Treasurers, Trustees and other employees excluded from
union contracts are categorized as Other Professionals.

Page 14



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m) Endowment Contributions

Endowment contributions are reported as revenue on the Statement of Operations when
received. Investment income earned on endowment principal is recorded as deferred revenue if it
meets the definition of a liability and is recognized as revenue in the year related expenses
(disbursements) are incurred. If the investment income earned does not meet the definition of a
liability, it is recognized as revenue in the year it is earned. Endowment assets are reported as
restricted non-financial assets on the Statement of Financial Position.

Financial Instruments

A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and obligations to
receive or deliver economic benefits. The financial assets and financial liabilities portray these
rights and obligations in the financial statements. The School District recognizes a financial
instrument when it becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities and other liabilities.

Except for portfolio investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market that are
recorded at fair value, all financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or amortized cost
and the associated transaction costs are added to the carrying value of these investments upon
initial recognition and amortized using the effective interest rate method. Transaction costs are
incremental costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or a financial
liability.

Unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments are
recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. Upon settlement, the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the statement of remeasurement gains and losses and recognized
in the statement of operations. Interest and dividends attributable to financial instruments are
reported in the statement of operations. There are no measurement gains or losses during the
periods presented; therefore, no statement of remeasurement gains or losses is included in these
financial statements.

All financial assets except derivatives are tested annually for impairment. When financial assets
are impaired, impairment losses are recorded in the statement of operations. A write-down of a
portfolio investment to reflect a loss in value is not reversed for a subsequent increase in value.

For financial instruments measured using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is
used to determine interest revenue or expense.

Measurement Uncertainty

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note
2 (a) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported amounts of

Page 15



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER RECEIVABLES

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024
Trade receivables $ 81,688 $ 88,967
GST receivable 446,957 739.242
Rent receivable 2.328 1.085
Other 206,638 34,746
$ 737.611 $ 864,040

NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES - OTHER

June 30, 2025

June 30, 2024

Trade payables $ 3.696.489 $ 2.668.656
Salaries and benefits payable 18.137.795 16,940,922
Accrued vacation pay 409.148 379.103
Construction holdbacks 1,257,018 421,203
Other 2.145 23.266
$ 23,502,594 $ 20.433,150

NOTE 5 UNEARNED REVENUE
June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,695,596 $ 1,842,637
Tuition fees collected 3,005,956 3,038,074
Tuition fees recognized (3,019.,487) (2,185,115)
Balance, end of year $ 2,682,065 $ 2,695,596

Page 16



NOTE 6

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of a
restricted contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury
Board, i.e., the stipulations associated with those grants and contributions have not yet been

fulfilled.

June 30, 2025

June 30, 2024

Balance, beginning of year S 4059276 S 3.329.111
Increase: Contributions recerved
Provincial Grants — Ministrv of Education & Child Care 29038355 25.921.586
Provincial Grants - Other 117.000 168512
Other 5.367.443 4. 697055
Imvestment mcome 84 654 104132
34.607.452 30.891.285
Decrease:
Expenses 33.803.276 30.037.666
Recovered 45 998 123454
33.849.274 30.161.120
Net changes for the vear 758178 730165
Balance, end of vear 3 4817454 3 4.059276

Page 17



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 7

DEFERRED CAPITAL REVENUE

Deferred capital revenue includes grants and contributions received that are restricted by the
contributor for the acquisition of tangible capital assets that meet the description of a restricted
contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. Once

spent, the contributions are amortized into revenue over the life of the asset acquired.

Balance, beginning of year

Increase:
Transfer from Unspent — Capital Additions
Transfer from Unspent — Work in Progress
Transfer from Deferred Capital Revenue —
Work in Progress
Provincial Grants — Ministry of Education &
Child Care
Other Income

Decrease:
Amortization of Deferred Capital
Capital Additions—transfer to Deferred Capital
Work in Progress—transfer to Deferred Capital
Site Purchases - transfer to Revenue
Facility Improvements Not Capitalized

Net changes for the year
Balance, end of year

Total
Deferred
Deferred Unspent Capital Total Deferred
Capital Capital Revenue Capital Revenue
2025 2025 2025 2024

$237,385,784  $6,145,560 $243,531,344 $242,337,300
7,036,021 - 7,036,021 7,431,952
12,821,546 - 12,821,546 3,532,080
- 22,962,748 22,962,748 13,406,693
- 632,688 632,688 716,998
19,857,567 23,595,436 43,453,003 25,087,723
10,293,124 - 10,293,124 10,153,137
- 7,036,021 7,036,021 7,431,952
- 12,821,546 12,821,546 3,532,080
- 240,651 240,651 -
- 3,008,457 3,008,457 2,776,510
10,293,124 23,106,675 33,399,799 23,893,679
9,564,443 488,761 10,053,204 1,194,044
$246,950,227  $6,634,321 $253,584,548 $243,531,344

Page 18



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 8 EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement,
retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. Funding is provided when the benefits
are paid and accordingly, there are no plan assets. Although no plan assets are uniquely identified,
the School District has provided for the payment of these benefits.

June 30, 2025

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation

June 30, 2024

Accrued Benefit Obligation — April 1 5 4.690,039 5 4540614
Service Cost 378,569 386,181
Interest Cost 208,412 190,434
Benefit Payments (354.413) (283.426)
Actuarial (Gain) Loss 883,992 (143.764)
Accrued Benefit Obligation — March 31 55,806,599 54.690.03%
Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year
Accrued Benefit Obligation - March 31 i 5.806,599 5 4.690,039
Market Value of Plan Assets - March 31 - -
Funded Status - Surphis (Deficit) (5,806,599) (4,690,039)
Employer Contributions After Measurement Date 58.449 171.178
Benefits Expense After Measurement Date (194.054) (146.745)
Unamortized Net Actuarial (Gain) Loss 575,365 (271.341)
Accrued Benefit Asset (Liability) - Tune 30 $ (5.366.838) $ (4.936.947)
Reconciliation of Change in Accrued Benefit Liability )
Accrued Benefit Liability - July 1 5 4,936,946 b 4,567,987
Net Expense for Fiscal Year 671,575 635,526
Employer Contributions (241,633) (266,566)
Accrued Benefit Liability - June 30 $ 5,366.838 3 4,936,947
Components of Net Benefit Expense
Service Cost bt 418,189 bt 384,278
Interest Cost 216.101 194.929
Amortization of Wet Actuarial (Gain)/Toss 37,286 56.319
Net Benefit Expense 5 671,575 5 635,525
Discount Rate - April 1 4.25% 4.00%
Discount Rate - March 31 4.00% 4,25%
Long Term Salary Growth - Apnl 1 2.50% + semonty 2.50% + seniority
Long Term Salary Growth - March 31 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority
EARSL - March 31 11.9 128

Page 19



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 9 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION
PS 3280

Legal liabilities exist for the removal and disposal of asbestos and other environmentally hazardous
materials within some district owned buildings that will undergo major renovations or demolition in
the future. A reasonable estimate of the fair value of the obligation has been recognized. The
obligation has been measured at current cost as the timing of future cash flows cannot be reasonably
determined. These costs have been capitalized as part of the assets’ carrying value and are amortized
over the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Asset Eetirement Obligation, opening balance 3 13870683
Addition due to change in ARQ estimate 290,725
Asset Retirement Obligation, closing balance 5 14161 408

NOTE 10 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Net Book Value

Met Book Walue Net Book Value

June 30, 20235 June 30, 2024
Sites % 47.592510 § 47,361,378
Buildings 235,342,894 239,520,969
Buildings - work in progress 16.735.353 3.913 508
Fumiture & Equipment B.168,804 £.885.713
Vehicles 6.340.316 4.632,776
Computer Software 34,074 49.043
Computer Hardware 513,042 726,208
Total 5 314,727,083 § 305,092,985

Page 20



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
June 30, 2025
Balance at Balance at

Cost: July 1, 2024 Additions Disposals Transfers (WIP)Y  June 30, 20235
Sites 8 47361378 %5 231,132 5 47,502 510
Buildings 403,141,000 5,508,613 408,649,613
Buildings - work in progress 3.513 308 12,821,346 16,733,334
Furniture & Equipment 11,501 560 485 351 (354.158) 12,122,733
Vehiclas 7,655,605 2,395,574 (146 253) 10,104 976
Computer Softwars 78274 (28,3607 TO.414

Computer Hardware 1066285 1066285

Total SATI 200000 5§ 21642216 S (300 311) § - 5405 341 903
Balance at Balancez at  June

Accumulated Amortization: Julyw 1, 2024 Additions DHzposals 30, 2023

ites 3 - 5 -

Buildings 163,620,031 0686 680 173,306,720

Furnitvre & Equipment 3,102,347 1,205,169 (354.158) 3.053 858

Vehiclas 3.022.919 288,034 (146 253) 3.764. 660

Computer Software 30,231 14 069 (8.860) 36,340

Computer Hardware 330 G837 213 257 353 244

Total 5170116015 § 12008118 § (300 311y § 181 614 822

June 30, 2024
Balance at Balance at

Cost: Julw 1, 2023 Additions DHzposals Transfers (WIF}  June 30, 2024

Sites 8 47351830 § 0514 8 47361378

Buildings 387,786,030 5,354,550 405,141 000

Buildings - work in progress 331,728 3.532.080 3.513.308

Furniture & Equipment 14,069 954 1,147 610 (3.226,004) 11,591 560

Vehicles 6,971 086 1,159 330 (473.630) 7,655,605

Computer Softwars 175,563 - (06,280 75274

Computer Hardware o0, 331 1619354 1066 283

Total S46TA41 471 5 113635452 3 (3.7974923) § - 5475200 000
Balance at Balancz at  June

Apcwmulated Amortization: Juls 1, 2023 Additions Dizposals 30, 2024

Sites 5 - 3 -

Buildings 154 344 372 0. 273,659 163 620,031

Furnitvre & Equipment 3,023,773 1,303,076 (3,226,004 3,102,347

Vehielas 2. 767,163 731,384 (473,630) 3,022,519

Computer Softwars 101,036 25 434 (96,2897 30,231

Computer Hardwara 142 925 197 062 330987

Total 8162 381273 § 115326635 § (3.7970923) § 170116015

Page 21



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS

The School District and its employees contribute to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal
Pension Plan (jointly trusteed pension plans). The boards of trustees for these plans, representing
plan members and employers, are responsible for administering the pension plans, including
investing assets and administering benefits. The plans are multi-employer defined benefit pension
plans. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2024, the Teachers’
Pension Plan has about 52,000 active members and approximately 43,000 retired members. As of
December 31, 2024, the Municipal Pension Plan has about 273,000 active members, including
approximately 32,000 from school districts.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plans
and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and
member contribution rate to fund the plans. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on
the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer
contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plans. This rate may be
adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization
of any unfunded actuarial liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Plan as at December 31, 2023,
indicated a $4,572 million surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2021, indicated
a $3,761 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.

The School District paid $16,130,025 for employer contributions to the plans for the year ended
June 30, 2025 (2024: $14,950,216).

The next valuation for the Teachers’ Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2026. The next
valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan was at December 31, 2024.

Employers participating in the plans record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
because the plans record accrued liabilities and accrued assets for each plan in aggregate, resulting
in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual
employers participating in the plans.

Page 22



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 12 RESTRICTED ASSETS - ENDOWMENT FUNDS

Donors have placed restrictions on their contributions to the endowment funds of the School
District. One restriction is that the original contribution should not be spent.

Name of Endowment Balance Contributions Balance
July 1. 2024 July 1, 2025
Brumt § 30,000 % - % 30.000
Nelson 10.000 - 10.000
Newberry 13.000 - 13.000
Ford Mountain 20,261 - 20261
Total b 73.261 % - $ 73.261

NOTE 13 INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers between the operating, special purpose and capital funds for the year ended June
30, 2025, were as follows:

e A transfer in the amount of $528,183 (2024 - $1,065,035) was made from the operating fund
to the capital fund for capital equipment purchases.

NOTE 14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The School District is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia
ministries, agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown
corporations. Transactions with these entities, unless disclosed separately, are considered to be in
the normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amount.

Page 23



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 15 BUDGET FIGURES

Budget figures included in the financial statements were approved by the Board through the
adoption of an amended annual budget on March 11, 2025. The Board adopted a preliminary annual
budget on June 11, 2024. The amended budget is used for comparison purposes, as these are based

on actual student enrollments. The difference between the two budgets is as follows:

2025 2025
Amended Preliminary Difference
Revennes

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education & Child Care 5219998 352 5208686707 § 11311645

Other 472215 200,000 272225
Municipal Grants spent on Sites 3.000.000 3.000.000 -
Tuition 2,905 550 2,380 803 524 747
Other Revenme 8,744 331 7.393 358 1,350,973
Rentals and Leases 250,000 150,000 100000
[nvestment Income 1,171,701 1,563 989 (392.288)
Amortization of Deferred Capital Eevenne 10276420 10,471,166 (194.746)

Total Revenue

Expenses
Instruction
District Administration
Operations and Maintenance
Transportation and Housing
Total Expenses

Surplus (Deficit) for the vear

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets
From Local Capital
From Deferred Capital Revenue

Total Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets

246,818,579

233 846,023

12,972,556

201212458 189.717497 11494961
7238086 6514218 723.868
32316922 32378376 (61.454)
6074328 5914737 159,591

246841794 234524828  12.316.966

(23.215) (678.805) 655.590

(1.552.506) (947.000) (605.506)

(21.211.642) (35.051.670)  13.840.028

(22.764.148) (35.998.670)  13.234.522
11.697.882  11.831.894 (134,012)

(11.066.266) (24.166.776)  13.100.510

$(11,089.481) $(24.845.581) $ 13.756.100

Page 24



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 16 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The School District has a total of $65,975,406 of contractual obligations at year end related to the
construction or renovation of tangible capital assets. These contractual obligations will become
liabilities in the future when the terms of the contracts are met and relate to the unperformed portion
of the contracts.

Stitos - Wew School Purchase order 5 400,000
Sardis Secondary (385) - Addition Purchase order 13,300,000
MeCammon Elementary - Building Envelope Contract 10,000
East Side Elementary - New School Contract 33,600,000
Fosedale Traditional (RTS) - Mechanical Upgrade Contract 550,000
AD Fundle - Architectural Design Contract 280,000
Cutus Lake Elementary - Building Envelope Contract 65,000
East Chilliwack Elementary - Mechanical Upgrade Contract 201,000
Cheam Elementary - Mechanical Upgrade Contract 150,000
Sardis Secondary (338) - HVAC Upgrade Purchase order 730,000
Sardis Secondary (3385) - Building Envelope Contract 65,000
Transportation Dept - Bus Replacement Contract 987,366
Church Property - Property - Purchase we have a signed purchase agreement Contract 3,000,040
Cheam Elementary - Fire Alarm Upgrade Contract 47.000
Little Mountain Elementary - Fire Alarm Upgrade Contract 46,000
Mt Slesse Middle (MSMS) - Eoof Replacement Contract 390,000
Leary Integrated Arts & Tech - Eoof Eeplacement Contract 216,000
East Chilliwack Elementary - Eoof Replacement Contract 40,000
Vedder Middle (VIVIS) - Flooring replacement Contract 285,000
East Chilliwack Elementary - Mechanical Upgrade Contract 260,000
Greendale Elementary - Fire Alarm Upgrade Contract 25,000
GW Graham Secondary - Welding Shop Contract 28,000

Total Construction Commitments 5 536875406

As of June 30, 2025, the School District has entered into an agreement to purchase a property at
9460 Charles Street, Chilliwack. The site is adjacent to Chilliwack Middle School and is intended
for future school expansion. The purchase closes on July 15, 2025 for a purchase price of
$3,040,000. A deposit of $150,000 was paid prior to June 30, 2025.

Page 25



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 17 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Each year the School District is involved with a number of legal actions and arbitrations. Although
the outcomes of these matters are not determinable at this time, management believes they will not
have a material adverse effect on the School District’s financial position or results of the operation.

NOTE 18 EXPENSES BY OBJECT

June 30, 2025

June 30, 2024

5 184332186
30,177312
11,532 663

Salaries and benefits 5 200610891
Services and supplies 31,733,101
Amortization 12,008,118

5 244334110

3 226,042,163

Page 26



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 19 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

Operating Fund Accumulated Surplus
Internally Restricted (appropriated) by Board for:
School-based Carryforwards

Indigenous Education Targeted Funds Unexpended

Indigenous Education Council
Jordan's Principle Carryforward
Early Learning Initiatives
New Technology
Total Internally Restricted Operating Surplus

Unrestricted Operating Surplus (Contingency)
Total Operating Fund Accumulated Surplus
Special Purpose Funds Surplus
Capital Fund Accumulated Surplus

Local Capital

Investment in Tangible Capital Assets

Total Capital Fund Accumulated Surplus

Total Accumulated Surplus

NOTE 20 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
$ 1,793,342 $ 1,456,608
312,591 235,784
91,196 -
227,102 -
214,453 119,826
300,000 -
2,938,684 1,812,218
7,930,367 7,250,166

$ 10,869,051

$ 9,062,384

$ 73,261 $ 73,261
- 725,090
53,590,695 53,811,765

$ 53,590,695

$ 54,536,855

$ 64,533,007

$ 63,672,500

The operations of the School District are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of
Education and Child Care and various governmental agencies to carry out its programs. These
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

NOTE 21 RISK MANAGEMENT

The School District has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit

risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

The Board ensures that the School District has identified its risks and ensures that management

monitors and controls them.

Page 27



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTE 21 RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

a)

b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations. Such risks arise principally from certain financial assets
held consisting of cash and accounts receivable.

The School District is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by a borrower.
This risk is mitigated as most accounts receivable are due from the Province and are collectible.

It is management’s opinion that the School District is not exposed to significant credit risk
associated with its cash deposits and investments as they are placed in recognized British
Columbia institutions or with the Provincial Ministry of Finance Central Deposit Program.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk is comprised of currency risk and
interest rate risk.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the foreign exchange rates. It is management’s opinion that the
School District is not exposed to significant currency risk, as amounts held and purchases made
in foreign currency are insignificant.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. It is management’s opinion that the
School District is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the School District will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they become due.

The School District manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash
flows from operations and anticipated investing activities to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the School District’s
reputation.

Risk management and insurance services for all School Districts in British Columbia are provided
by the Risk Management Branch of the Ministry of Finance. There have been no changes to risk
exposure from 2024 related to credit, market or liquidity risks.

Page 28



LENE

pozreur 30N - T AV I

005°TL9€9 LOO‘EES Y9 S69°06S°€S 19T°€L 1S0°698°01
- € JUIWIIE)S - (SISSOT) SUIBL) JUIWAINSBIWIY PIIE[NWNIY
00S°TLI€9 LOO‘EES P9 $69°06S°€S 19T°€L 1S0°698°01 7 JUdWA)E)S - 183K Jo pud ‘GrYI(Q) sniding pajenWNIY
TL6'SIL'T L0S 098 (091°9t6) - L99°908°T a183£ 9} 10y s9SUBY)) JON
= .Hoﬁﬁo
- (060°sTL) 060°STL [ende) eoog
- $S013014 UI JIOA - S}ossy [ende)) 9[qiSue |,
- €LT'ESTT (€LT'esTD) paseyoIng s1ssy [ende) oqiSue],
SIQJSUBI] pUNJIoIU]
TL6'SILT LOS 098 (EPEPLY'T) 0S8vEET Jeak ayy Joy (3roy(q) snjding
1834 3y) J10J saduey)
87590619 00S°7L9°€9 SS8°9€S S 19T°€L ¥8€790°6 PajeIsaa se “aeddk jo Suruuidaq ‘(ryd() sniding pajemunddy
syuausn[py poLd IoLd
875°906°19 00S°TLI‘E9 SS89€SPS 19T°€L ¥8£°790°6 1834 yo Suruuidaq ‘Groya() sniding poyenWnIIY
$ $ $ $ $
punyg punyg punyg
[emoy enPVv rende) asodang eadsg SunexadQ
$20T ST0T

(payipneuq)) [ 9[Npayds

$T0T ‘0€ dunf papug 183 X

punyg £q (3oge(q) snjding paye[nunody ur saguey)) Jo S[NPaYoS
(eMIIYD) €€ "ON ILISI [00YdS



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Schedule of Operating Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 15)
$ $ $
Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 187,699,654 188,456,253 176,284,986
Other 200,000 170,560 170,026
Federal Grants 380,788
Tuition 2,905,550 3,019,487 2,185,115
Other Revenue 4,294,331 4,341,552 4,520,940
Rentals and Leases 250,000 342,738 219,735
Investment Income 1,121,701 1,157,731 1,460,017
Total Revenue 196,471,236 197,869,109 184,840,819
Expenses
Instruction 167,076,569 164,663,654 153,084,961
District Administration 7,238,086 6,823,628 5,973,222
Operations and Maintenance 18,576,214 18,249,667 17,291,869
Transportation and Housing 5,182,120 5,797,310 5,345,267
Debt Services
Total Expense 198,072,989 195,534,259 181,695,319
Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,601,753) 2,334,850 3,145,500
Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 2,429,168
Net Transfers (to) from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (827,415) (1,253,273) (401,420)
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress
Local Capital 725,090 (663,615)
Other
Total Net Transfers (827,415) (528,183) (1,065,035)
Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year - 1,806,667 2,080,465
Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 9,062,384 6,981,919
Prior Period Adjustments
District Entered
District Entered
Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year, as restated 9,062,384 6,981,919
Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 10,869,051 9,062,384
Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year
Internally Restricted 2,938,684 1,812,218
Unrestricted 7,930,367 7,250,166
Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 10,869,051 9,062,384

DRAF T - Not Finalized

Page 9



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Schedule 24 (Unaudited)

Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 15)
$ $ $
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Operating Grant, Ministry of Education and Child Care 187,744,276 187,839,050 174,995,883
ISC/LEA Recovery (3,231,588) 3,157,642) (3,231,588)
Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants
Pay Equity 864,624 864,624 864,624
Funding for Graduated Adults 11,024 20,626 7,915
Student Transportation Fund 329,456 329,456 329,456
Support Staff Benefits Grant 220,285 220,285 220,285
FSA Scorer Grant 14,329 14,329 14,329
Child Care Funding 458,153 491,337 130,279
Labour Settlement Funding 1,834,188 1,834,188 2,953,803
Reduction in Operating Grant for February enrollment estimate (545,093) - -
District Entered
District Entered
District Entered
District Entered
District Entered
District Entered
District Entered
District Entered
Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 187,699,654 188,456,253 176,284,986
Provincial Grants - Other 200,000 170,560 170,026
Federal Grants 380,788
Tuition
Summer School Fees
Continuing Education
International and Out of Province Students 2,905,550 3,019,487 2,185,115
District Entered
Total Tuition 2,905,550 3,019,487 2,185,115
Other Revenues
School Referendum Taxes
Other School District/Education Authorities
Funding from First Nations 3,231,588 3,157,642 3,231,588
Miscellaneous
Bus Fees 321,037 357,257 391,376
Energy Program 30,000 - 38,541
Child Care Fee for Service 428,060 512,804 490,635
Other Miscellaneous 283,646 310,299 368,641
Donations - 2,200 159
Distance Learning - 1,350 -
District Entered
Total Other Revenue 4,294,331 4,341,552 4,520,940
Rentals and Leases 250,000 342,738 219,735
Investment Income 1,121,701 1,157,731 1,460,017
Total Operating Revenue 196,471,236 197,869,109 184,840,819

DRAFT - Not Finalized Page 10



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

Schedule of Operating Expense by Object
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 15)
$ $ $

Salaries

Teachers 79,420,585 79,240,405 74,507,389

Principals and Vice Principals 9,980,312 9,991,569 9,750,418

Educational Assistants 19,071,670 18,331,208 17,187,253

Support Staff 18,556,549 18,384,060 16,701,179

Other Professionals 5,048,090 4,888,188 4,176,138

Substitutes 8,692,284 8,444,833 7,578,944

Total Salaries 140,769,490 139,280,263 129,901,321
Employee Benefits 36,283,358 35,997,772 32,142,978
Total Salaries and Benefits 177,052,848 175,278,035 162,044,299
Services and Supplies

Services 5,906,375 6,108,407 5,538,402

Student Transportation 54,500 58,404 192,296

Professional Development and Travel 1,391,361 1,293,813 1,317,198

Rentals and Leases 25,200 59,287 25,202

Dues and Fees 376,199 441,154 267,772

Insurance 415,908 406,092 324,724

Interest

Supplies 10,196,098 9,547,331 9,660,814

Utilities 2,654,500 2,341,736 2,324,612

District Entered

Total Services and Supplies 21,020,141 20,256,224 19,651,020
Total Operating Expense 198,072,989 195,534,259 181,695,319

DRAFT - Not Finalized Page 11



71 9%eq

pazmeut 3N - T IV A

€97°08T°6€1 €E8 VP8 881°888‘p 090°y8€ 81 80T 1EE 81 6951666 SOV 0VT6L 6 - T suopouny [ejo,
- - - - - - - 6 uonouny [ejoJ,
- Suimoilog Arerodwso |, uo 1S2I91U] $6°6
- sueo] xﬂmm UO I1SAINU] 76°6
m00_>.~®m 392d 6
LES'LTEE 869°LST 89L°10T 1L0°898°T - - - L uonduny [ejo],
- Suisnoy ¢/,
PII‘SH8T 869°LST - 91+°L85T - - - uoneodsuel] Juspmg (L',
€TH I8y - 89L°10T $59°08¢ - - - UOTJENSIUIUPY SUISNOH PUe UOLEMOdSURI], 47/
Sursnoy pue uonejrodsued], L
SEEIL6%6 8€6°98L LLT‘TY9 0TTEPS'8 - - - S uondUNY [E)OL,
- - - - - - - SN 95°S
8LE'OE8 TL8°69 - 90$°99L - - - SPUNOILD) JO IUBUNUIBIA TGS
SIS'SLES 0€6°SIL - G88°6S9°L - - - suonesad() SOUBUSIUIBIA 0S°S
THI‘6SL 9¢I°l LLTTY9 678911 - - - UOTJENSIUIUPY SOUBUSIUIEIN pue suonessdQ 7§
- a1e)) Py pue Surured T Aed 0'S
ddueuduIL pue suonerddQ §
€58°6£6°€ 097 1€L°690°€ 06L°T0L - TLOLIT - ¥ uonouny [ejo],
LS6°€09°T 09¢ SE8°EELT 06LT0L - TLOLIT - UONEXSIUIWPY SSouIsng [{'f
9bHoLY - b 9LT - - - - QOUBILISAOD) JOLUSI(] [00YDS Ot f
- a1e)) Py pue Sutured T A[req 0T
0SH6STT - 0SH6ST°T - - - - UoNENSIUIUPY [EUONEINPH ]}
uone.nSIUIWpPY PLYSIA
8€SIHO°TTI LE6'66E°L TIS'SL6 6L6°697°9 80T IECST L6186 SO 0FT6L [ uonduny [Bjo],
0L - - 0L - - - YO ¥9'1
PLIVOE - ¥9L°501 £95°6S - 9r8THI - SJUSPNIS AIUIAOIJ JO INQ PUE [BUOHBUINU] 79"
Sh6‘o¥ - - - - - SH6'9F UONEINPH SUIMUKUO)) 19" [
POLTIE - - - Y65 1Y - 0LT°0LT [00YdS Jowung (9° |
9LLY6OET 7L6°99T 855 681 8TLIYIE - 68L°TLO6 6TL YT UONEXSIUIWPY [00YIS [4'[
0S+°868°C 999°TH 1 18€°0C1 €LI STS9LET 8€I°C L9S9ST'T UOTJEINPE SNOUSSIPU [¢"|
T10°€LT 989°¢¢ - - - - STE'6ET Surured ogengue ysisug ¢’ [
€T1°599 0z€1T 8HTST 1z 16% - - - aIe) P[IY) pue Surtied T ALed 0T [
61I8HE0°LT SS6°SLYT - STT'S9L €€9°0S8°91 LOS8ST 667 78Y°L UOIBONPH SAISN[IUL O] |
TI9°TEY'E 80%°L6 - - - - Y0TSEEE Suresuno) 80’ [
S96°68L°T W96 - LLY'T - 816°LY 8TEHYI‘1 SIOIAIRG AIRIqIT L'
0I8HE0°T 100°01 LTELOT 8Y°L16 - - - sweIgo1d 19a1e) €01
LIOI8O0TL L89°$S0°S - L86°TT8 96+29 66T°10€ 8€9°8€89 uononNsuy JBM3NY 70’1
uondngsuy |
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
SaLIB[eS SaLIB[eS SaLIB[eS SaLIB[eS SaLIB[eS SaLIBeS SaLIBeS
ejoL samnsqng S[euoIssajoad Jels Sjue)sIssy m—ﬂmmuﬁmhm ANIA SI9YIed J,
PYO j10ddng [euoneINpy pue sfedourig

(pajyipneun)) DT AMPIYIS

$T0T ‘0 dunf papuy 183X
100[qO pue weIdoiq ‘wondung Aq asuadxyg Suneradp

(CIPEMIIIYD) €€ *ON PLISI [00YdS



€1 9%eq

(pajyipneun)) DT AMPIYIS

pazmeut 3N - T IV A

61€°569 181 686°CL0O861 6STrES'S6l ¥TT9ST0T SE0'8LT'SLT TLL'L66'SE 6 - I suonouny [ejoJ,
- - - - - - 6 uonouny [eI0L,
- - Suimoilog Arerodwo |, uo 1S2191U] $6°6
- - SUBOT MuBE UO ISAINU] 766
SIIIAIIS 399 6
L9T'SHE'S 0T1°Z81°S 0TEL6L'S 00T 6LS'T 011°81C'Y €L5°068 Luonouny [gjo],
- - - SuIsnoH ¢/,
911°Er9'y SYTLEY'Y 8P 010°S SO1°9TH'1 €8T'H8S‘E 691°6€L uonepodsuer], Jups 0L,
IS1°20L LLSVYL 798°98L SE0'EST LT8EEY YOV IST UONENSIUTPY SUISNOH pue uoneyodsuer], 4L
Suisnoy pue uonejaodsue.ly, L
698°16T°L1 Y1T9LS 81 L99°6¥ 781 $00°769°S €99°LSS Tl 87€°985°T S uonduny [eJo],
T19vTeT 005759 9ELTYE'T 9EL TYET - - sonIhN 95°¢
0€° 1671 £07°808°1 8LT999°1 S19°€6S €99°TLO‘T S8T'9€T SpUNOLD) JO dUBUNUILIN S°S
6€9°LSETT 086618°C1 SSHPS6TI 0vT'86€C SIT9SS 01 00t°081°C suonerdd( SouBUAUIEIN 0SS
918111 1€€°€6T'1 861°L8T°1 £11°85¢ S8L8T6 £9°691 UONENSIUTPY d0oukUUIRA puE suoneredQ [4°¢
- - are) iy pue Sururea | A[1eq 07'S
JdurUNUIRIA puk suonerddQ S
TTTELO'S 980°8€T'L 879°€78'9 €9€°800°C S9T'SISY TIV'SL8 y uonouny [ejo L,
0v9°€ST'y 659°S80°S SYLOIS'Y PILLSTT PEO‘ETT'E LLO'619 uopensUIwpy ssauisng 44
SLO'98E 192919 06€79S 660°€LE 16T°681 S8l 9OUBUIDAOD) JOLNSI [00YDS 01y
- - are) iy pue Surures T AR 0Tt
LOS EEYT 991°9€5°1 06+°0SL T 0SS‘LyE 0v6 70 1 06¥°€¥T uonensIupy feuonednpy [
uonensUIpy PLOSIA
196'780°€S1T 695°9L0°L91T pS9°€99p91 LS99L601 L66°989°€ST 6SY'SY9‘1€ T uonouny [ejor,
L6LTIT ¥17°891 1S6°PST #5009 L68V6 SL8'0T 20 91
781618 9SG 11T'1 6V9°9CIT 9STSSL €6€°TLE 61T°L9 SIUSpMS SJUIAOIJ JO INQ PUL [EUOHIBUINUT 79" |
SO¥'8 0009 8LEIS or'e 9L6'LY 1€0°1 uonedNpy SUMuUnuo) [9°[
68L16C 6T €eT 7S0°‘16€ LSTY1 S6L9LE 1€0°S9 [00yd§ Tourung 09° [
697991 €T8°08L Y1 EPEBLEII 0L9°LET €LI0FTII L6S'SY1E UOREHSIUIWPY [0OYIS [§']
879 V611 STI°LSO'S LEE9ITSY SLT1¥8 790°589°€ T19°98L UonEINPY SNOUSSIPUT [¢'[
£8%°TSS 1S1°606 609°TSE 16081 8IS PEE LOST9 Sururea ] oFensue T ysISuy 0¢'|
69€°LLY T1€626 £rE°606 r191 661°€98 9L0°861 are)) iy pue Sururea T Afreq 07"
IP1°911°C€ 195°LTT'LE 8€€°860°SE 8CT1C8 OTT‘LLTVE 16T°THT'L uonedINpy SAISNOUL O]
€0S°1¥S°E rEY6L'E SYO'ELT'Y - SYO'ELT'Y £€0°1¥8 Surpesuno) 80'[
1L8°L0OV'T 6TL VY9 L80Y8ET 981°161 106°T€TT 9€6° Ty S901A10S ATRIqQUT L0 ]
61LSEV'T 80T TELT 661 €E8T 0LS 18 676°1SE'T 611°L1¢E SWeIS0Id 19018 €0'T
£08°0TE°16 671°78€°86 €TV E8I°L6 YIS 9r9°L 668°9€5°68 7€8°CSH 81 uononnsuy 1ensay 70’1
uondINSuy |
$ $ $ $ $ $
(ST 910N) sarddng s)joudg pue s)yaudyg
[emoy 1o8png emoVy PUE SIIAIIS SILIE[ES [8)0], 3kodwuy
¥20T §20t $°0T

$T0T ‘0 dunf papuy 183X
100[qO pue weIdoiq ‘wondung Aq asuadxyg Suneradp

(CIPEMIIIYD) €€ *ON PLISI [00YdS



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Sehedule 3 (Unaudited)

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2025
2025 2025 2024
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 15)
$ $ $

Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 29,836,851 28,447,135 25,387,331
Other 272,225 217,381 134,854
Federal Grants
Other Revenue 4,450,000 5,054,106 4,411,353
Rentals and Leases
Investment Income 50,000 84,654 104,132
Income (Loss) from Investments in Government Business Enterprises
District Entered
Total Revenue 34,609,076 33,803,276 30,037,670

Expenses
Instruction 34,135,389 33,330,089 29,006,031
District Administration
Operations and Maintenance 456,617 456,617 1,003,953
Transportation and Housing 16,570 16,570 27,686
Debt Services
District Entered
Total Expense 34,609,076 33,803,276 30,037,670

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year, before endowment contributions - - -

Endowment Contributions

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year - - -

Net Transfers (to) from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress
Other
Total Net Transfers - - R

Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year - - -

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 73,261 73,261
Prior Period Adjustments
District Entered
District Entered
Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year, as restated 73,261 73,261

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year 73,261 73,261

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year
Related Entities
Endowment Contributions 73,261 73,261
Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year 73,261 73,261

DRAFT - Not Finalized Page 14



S193eq

pazeul] JON - ,H;rvﬁéﬁ—

puny sunerdQ a1y ‘ur pajrodar pue ‘Aq papuny sasuadxy _N=o_u_11<_

669901 00042C STO'ELS'Y - - 0S1°091 - 18€°059 L19°9S¥
0S1°81 ¥80°81 1991287 0S1°091 L19°9SY
12€°81 SOL9Y 8€T'8ST
8TT0L 112651 9L 1S - - - - £v1°T6v -
ILLLT 916°1 L6V LY
LSY'TS S9T'LST 99
V1T
12T
669901 00042C ST0'ELS'Y - - 0S1°091 - 18€°059 L199S¥
0T6°€9 06691
S01°608‘t 091°€v1
669901 00042 18€°059 L19°9S¥
888°ST - L66°LELT - - 1719y - - -
669901 00042 STO'ELS'Y - - 0S1°091 - 18€°059 L19°9S¥
0sy'1s 00042C 1L¥001°S - - TEL'STT - 18€°059 L19°9S¥
0T6°€9 06691
165°9€0°S TWLTIT
0SY'1S 000+2C 18€°059 L19°9S¥
LETIL - 16S°018°T - - 6€5°96€ - - -
LETIL 16S°015°T 6€5°96€
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
wIed| )1e)§ sappuy spun | ASojouyday, UOPBULIOJSURI], saLiesang yuowdinby puny juein
FEIN Suong parePy pIjeIIuID uopedINpy AnATRQ pue uopeINpy JuowdAoxdury Anpde
‘Apeay [00YdS§ [enadg NIARS sdiysaejoypg [enadg Surured| [enuuy

(payipneun) Ve 3npayds

(asuadxyy) anudAdY JON

PO

$SQIT0IJ UT IO - SI10ssY [ende)) o[qiSue],

paseyoIng spassy [eide) ajqiSue],
SI9JSURL], punyIapuy

SI9JSURL], pUNyIANU] 2.10§9¢ (Asuadx7) INUIANY N

Pparuy JOMSI
sorjddng pue soomIg
syjoueg dokordwg

soymnsqng
S[BUOISSIJOI] IO
Jye1s woddng
SIUR)SISSY [RUOTIRONPH
sredrouni 9017 pue sjedourrg
Nalialia)

soLe[eS
sasuadxy

PaIuy JOMISI

sosLIdIUY SSOUISN JUAUUIIAOL) UT SJUWISIAU] WOIJ (SSOT) AWOU]

QUIOdU] JUSUIISIAU]
SOSBO] PUB S[RIUY
ANUAARY YO
SIURID) [BIOPI ]
10 - SIUBID) [BIOUIAOL]
Q1B PIIYD Pue uonedNpy JO ANSIUIA] - SJUBID) [RIOUIAOI]
SINUIARY

1234 JO PUd ONUIAIY PALIPQ
PpaIuy JOMSI
PAIOA0IIY

ANUAARY 0) PAJROO[[Y  :SSI]

paruy JOMISI
QUIOdU] JUSUIISIAUL
PPO
SIURID) [BIOPI,]
10O - SIUEBID) [BIOUIAOL]
Q1B PIIYD Pue UONEINPH JO ANSIUIA] - SJUID) [RIOUIAOI]
SIUBID) PAJOINSAY PPV

P3JBISAI SE “TBIA JO SUTUUISI( QNUIAIY PALRJPJ
PpaIuy JOMSI
1234 Jo SuruuIdaq “OnudAdy pPaLR

ST0T “0¢€ dunf papug 1eax
100[qQ Aq asuadxy pue spun,] osoding [eroads ur saguey)
(PEMIIIYD) €€ "ON ILBSIJ [00YdS



91 33eq

pazeul] JON - ,H;rvﬁéﬁ—

puny sunerdQ ay ‘ur pajrodaa pue ‘Aq papuny sasuadxy [euonIppy

8ST'Sy - 195°¢ £5¥°08 0L5°91 910°62€ 9¥6°68€°TC 085St TE6'8LL £0T°961
1191 8L6'T £5+°08 0LS°91 8€H°9T¢E 149°St 809°8C ISLTTT
SL6'Y 90€ 0L8'8LS Y 1¥L°T8 SITHLI 0S1°61
TLS€T - €8¢ - - TLTT 9LOTIS LI 861°L1¢ 601°9LS T0€°59
€8¢ 869°7CC £96°S 199
10S°C1
666°6L
9P1°0LS 1%9°09
TLS€T
(o 9LOTIS LI
8ST'Sy - 195°¢ £5¥°08 0,591 910°62€ 976°68€°TC 08SSHi TE6'8LL £0T°961
rhLE
8ST'SY 195°¢ £5+°08 9T8°CI 910°6C€ 916°68€°CT 08S°SH TE6'8LL £0T°961
THI0EL - LY £0€°6 996°€11 - - - 9IS'S -
866°St
8ST'SY - 195°¢ £5+°08 0LS°91 910°6C€ 976°68€°CT 08S°SH TE6'8LL €0T°961
00t'STH - 0ST'11 000°1S rhL'E 910°62€ 9¥6°68€°TC 08SSti T80°SLL £0T°961
vhLE
00t'STH 0ST'11 000°1S 910°6C€ 916°68€°CT 08S°SH T80°SLL €0T°961
000°09€ - £85°9 95L°8¢ 06L°TLL - - - 99¢°6 -
000°09€ €859 95L°8¢ 06L°TLT 99¢°6
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
ud)IE3IPpUry] puny UOPB[RUIA UAIP[IYD Sunox S[00YdS ul uopeyiodsuel], SIIPIWdY - puny Suyje)S - puny PeIYAQ - punyg NI TAIUNWWOD) dA10
Leq / sse) 10§ S)[nsaY PredH yupms yuyg 3 qugy quyg
SSI[UIBAS 0) wIn)y Surduey) [BIUDdIAI uoneN ISy wooIsse[) wooIsse[) wooIsse[)

JJeg [eIIPd ]

(payipneun) Ve 3npayds

(asuadx7) anudAdY JON

PO

$SQIT01J UI IO - S1ossy [ende)) ojqidue],

paseyoIng sjossy [eyde)) o[qisue],
SI9JSURL], punjIduy

SIQSURL], PUNJIANUT 310§9q (suddX ) INUIAIY PN

paIoyuy 10MSIq
sorddng pue sooIg
syjouag dokojdwg

somsqng
S[BUOISSIJOI] JOYIO
Je1s woddng
SIUB)SISSY [BUOTIRONPH
srediouni 9o1A pue sjedouni g
Nalialia)
soLe[eS
sasuadxy

paIoyuy 10MSIq
soSLIAIUA SSOUISN JUAUUIIAOL) U SJUWISIAU] WOIJ (SSOT) AWOU]
QUIOdU] JUSUIISIAU]
SOSEO] PUE S[EIUDY
ANUAARY YO
SIURID) [BIOPI ]
10 - SIUEBID) [BIOUIAOL]
Q1B PIIYD Pue UoneONpH JO ANSIUIA] - SJULID) [RIOUIAOL]
SINUIARY

23K JO PUd ONUIAIY PALRQ
paIduy 10MmSIq
POIOA00Y
QNUAADY 0) PAJLOO[[Y  :SSI]

paIoyuy 10MmsIq

QUIOIU] JUSUIISIAU]

PO

SIURID) [RIOPI ]

10O - SIUBID) [BIOUIAOL]

Q1B PIIYD PuB UONEONPH JO ANSIUIA] - SJULID) [RIOUIAOL]
SIUBID) PAJOINSAY PPV

P3JBISAI SE “TBIA JO SUTUUISI( QNUIANY PALRJPQ
paluy JOMSI
1234 Jo SuruuIdaq “OnudAdy paLR

ST0T “0¢€ dunf papug 1eax
100[qQ Aq asuadxy pue spun,] osoding [eroads ur saguey)
(PEMIIIYD) €€ "ON ILBSIJ [00YdS



L1933eq

pazeul] JON - ,H;rvﬁéﬁ—

puny sunerdQ ay ‘ur pajrodaa pue ‘Aq papuny sasuadxy [euonIppy

- (asuadx7) anudAdY JON

PO

$SQIT01J UI IO - S1ossy [ende)) ojqidue],

paseyoIng sjossy [eyde)) o[qisue],
SI9JSURL], punjIduy

- SIQSURL], PUNJIANUT 310§9q (suddX ) INUIAIY PN

8€°001 - 9€0'pv1 6S1°€l TT1'806°1 000°SL1 696°0C ¥LT 058°09¢ 76698
paIoyuy 10MSIq
8STYE 18€°111 0SL%9 6SL9T9°T y1T1 696°0C ¥LT 058°09¢ 76698 sorddng pue sao1a108
8LLYT 1SS°L TTS09 68T°0¢ s)jouag dokordwyg
[y - Y01°5T 6019 178°0€T L6v'Epl - - - -
60v°9 P8E°T saMusqng
0T 1S Th1'ss S[RUOISSJ0I] JYIO
Y01°ST SLT'6 oS poddng
€5T°TET SJUB)SISSY [BUOTIBONPT
L6V €1 srediouni 9o1A pue sjedouni g
L8LT SI0YoRI],
soLe[eS
sasuadxy
8€°001 - 9€0'pv1 6S1°€l TTI'806°1 000°SL1 696°0C ¥LT 058°09¢ 76698
paIoyuy 10MSIq
soSLIAIUA SSOUISN JUAUUIIAOL) U SJUWISIAU] WOIJ (SSOT) AWOU]
QUIOdU] JUSUIISIAU]
SOSEO] PUE S[EIUDY
S1€sT 89%°S anuAASY YO
SIURID) [BIOPI ]
8€T001 1Y) - SIUBID) [BIOUIAOL]
9€0' vyl 6S1°€l LOS'T8S’T 000°SL1 10S°S1 ¥LT 058°09¢ 76698 a1e)) PIIYD pue UONEINPH JO ANSTUTN - SIUBID) [EIOUAOL]
SINUIARY
£8€°79 964122 $96°SS 6€9°18 TEL'S86 - 66v°€ L19°ST TSITIT 18L1¥1 1834 JO PUD INUIAY PALIdQ
paIduy 10MmSIq
- POIOA00Y
8€T°001 - 9€0' vyl 6S1°€l TTI'806°1 000°SL1 696°0T ¥LT 058°09¢ 76698 ANUIANY 0] PAIBOO[[Y SS9
000°101 96v°12C 000°00T 000°08 6VTHS1T 000°SL1 891 ¥C 000°ST - 000°TL
paIoyuy 10MmsIq
QUIOIU] JUSUIISIAU]
[y 89%°S RENiiTe)
SIURID) [RIOPI ]
000°101 1Y) - SIUBID) [BIOUIAOL]
96v°12C 000°00T 000°0S ¥€6°'8T1°T 000°SL1 000°61 000°ST 000°TL 18D PIIYD) puE UONEINPH JO ANSTUTA - SIUBID) [EIDUAOL]
SIUBID) PAJOINSAY PPV
12919 - - S6L v S09°6EL - - 168 200°TLY SLLOGT P3JBISAI SE “TBIA JO SUTUUISI( QNUIANY PALRJPQ
paluy JOMSI
12919 86L VY S09°6€L 168 T00°TLY SLL'OST 1824 Jo SuruuIaq INUIAY AP
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
uopeINpy dyes € juein uorsuedxy sjueIn) puny (Suruiedry (udpresrapuryy rd AIiqepioyyy  wieadoad ypai)
2 3939dsay] 1adxyg Surured| weigorq REE) g) saamyn g are) Apey) 0) saed § Aprey) sar Aure g [enq uoneINpy
asvada [euolssojo.rq Npa1) [enq PIedsH Surpaay o LTAIS ¥ yuwpms pooyppy) Aprey
MIN MIN

(payipneun) Ve 3npayds

ST0T “0¢€ dunf papug 1eax
100[qQ Aq asuadxy pue spun,] osoding [eroads ur saguey)
(PEMIIIYD) €€ "ON ILBSIJ [00YdS



81 93eq

(payipneun) Ve 3npayds

pazeul] JON - ,H;rvﬁéﬁ—

puny sunerdQ 3y ‘ur pajrodar pue ‘Aq papuny sasuadxy _«=o_u_ﬂv<_

9LT'€08°€EE 06k 850°1L ErILII
0THOLY'S 6TTY1 L9T €99°CI1
082°0TT'S 6LI°L 0Ft91
9LSTIT0T YE9°LT 15€%S 08ty
T16°01¢€
SP88Y1
1€L°90% YE9°LT 15€%S
€99°65T°1 08t
690°L91
95€°618°LI
9LT'E08°€EE 06k 850°1L 349!
7S9'p8
901°750°S 8S0°TL
18€°L1T [S4WANI
SEILYH8T o6t
PSY LISy 856 60T 61901
866°St
9LT'E08°€EE o6t 850°1L [S4WANI
TSH'LO9PE 000°0S L9€°88 000°LTT
7S9'¥8
PP LIES L9€°88
000°81C 000°LTT
GSE'LEG'ST 000°0S
9LT'650F - 001°L T9L°01
9LT'650F 001°L T9L°01
$ $ $ $
TVLOL jududUBY U juein Japeniuy syodg
UILIAXF YI0A\  SNOIUB[[IISTIA! [00YdS 1V

(asuadx7) anudAdY JON

PO

$SQIT01J UI IO - S1ossy [ende)) ojqidue],

paseyoIng sjossy [eyde)) o[qisue],
SI9JsueI], punyiuy

SIJSUBL], PUNJINU] 310J9q (ASUIAXT) INUIANY N

parduy OLISIq
sorddng pue sooIg
syjouag dokordwg

somsqng
S[BUOISSIJOI] JOYIO
Je1s woddng
SIUB)SISSY [BUOTIRONPH
srediouni 9o1A pue sjedouni g
Nalialia)
soLe[eS
sasuadxy

paIoyuy 10MSIq
soSLIAIUA SSOUISN JUAUUIIAOL) U SJUWISIAU] WOIJ (SSOT) AWOU]
QUIOdU] JUSUIISIAU]
SOSEO] PUE S[EIUDY
ANUAARY YO
SIURID) [BIOPI ]
10 - SIUEBID) [BIOUIAOL]
Q1B PIIYD Pue UoneONpH JO ANSIUIA] - SJULID) [RIOUIAOL]
SINUIARY

23K JO PUd ONUIAIY PALRQ
paIduy 10MmSIq
PAIOA0IIY

QNUAADY 0) PAJLOO[[Y  :SSI]

paIoyuy 10MmsIq
QUIOIU] JUSUIISIAU]
PO
SIURID) [RIOPI ]
10O - SIUBID) [BIOUIAOL]
Q1B PIIYD PuB UONEONPH JO ANSIUIA] - SJULID) [RIOUIAOL]
SIUBID) PAJOINSAY PPV

P9IE)SaI Sk ‘184 JO SUTUUIZI(q “ANUIAIY PILIJI
paluy JOMSI
1234 Jo SuruuIdaq “OnudAdy paLR

$T0T “0¢ dun( papuy 1ed x
100[qQ Aq asuadxy pue spun,] osoding [eroads ur saguey)
(PEMIIIYD) €€ "ON 1dLISIA [00YdS



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Schedule of Capital Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025
Budget
(Note 15)

2025 Actual

Invested in Tangible Local
Capital Assets Capital

Fund
Balance

Schedule 4 (Unaudited)

2024
Actual

Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other
Municipal Grants Spent on Sites
Federal Grants
Other Revenue
Rentals and Leases
Investment Income
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets

$

2,461,847

3,000,000

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 10,276,420

District Entered

$ $

3,008,457

240,651

10,293,124

$

3,008,457

240,651

10,293,124

2,776,510

10,153,137

Total Revenue 15,738,267

13,542,232 -

13,542,232

12,929,647

Expenses
Operations and Maintenance
Transportation and Housing
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

2,461,847

Operations and Maintenance 10,822,244

Transportation and Housing
Write-off/down of Buildings and Sites
Debt Services

Capital Lease Interest

Capital Loan Interest
District Entered

875,638

3,008,457

11,120,084
888,034

3,008,457

11,120,084
888,034

2,776,510

10,801,281
731,384

Total Expense 14,159,729

15,016,575 -

15,016,575

14,309,175

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year

1,578,538

(1,474,343) -

(1,474,343)

(1,379,528)

Net Transfers (to) from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress
Local Capital
Capital Lease Payment
Capital Loan Payment
Settlement of Asset Retirement Obligation
District Entered

827,415

1,253,273

(725,090)

1,253,273
(725,090)

401,420

663,615

Total Net Transfers

827,415

1,253,273 (725,090)

528,183

1,065,035

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances
District Portion of Proceeds on Disposal
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital
Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital
Principal Payment
Capital Lease
Capital Loan
Settlement of Asset Retirement Obligation from Local Capital
District Entered
District Entered
Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year

2,405,953

(221,070)  (725,090)

(946,160)

(314,493)

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year
Prior Period Adjustments
District Entered
District Entered
Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year, as restated

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year

DRAFT - Not Finalized

53,811,765 725,090

54,536,855

54,851,348

53,811,765 725,090

54,536,855

54,851,348

53,590,695 -

53,590,695

54,536,855

Page 19



07 98eqg

pozeu N - T VA

€80°LTLYIE [ yLO‘YE 9IE0PE9 768°891°8 LYT'8L0TST 01S‘T6S LY BN - s1assy [ende) dqisue],
819181 yhTess 0¥€9¢ 099v9L'€ 858°€56°¢ 0TL90E €L 1234 JO PUd ‘UONEZIIOWY PIIE[NWNIIY
T1€60S - 098°8 €67°971 8STPSE -
- PpaIoju 10MSI
- Ied X SuLm(y JJo-uonLIp
11€60S 098°8 €6T°9¥1 8S1PSE s[esodsi(q pawde(
- Jo pasodsiq
19SBAI09 (]
S11°800°T1 LSTE1T 69671 7€0°888 691°50T°1 689°989°6 Ted X 9y} 10J UONEZIIOUY :9SEaIou]
83 X ) 10J saguey))
STO‘9TT0LT L86°6€€ 1€2°0¢ 616720°€ LY8°T01°€E 1€0°029°€91 PajeIsa sk “1edk Jo SUUUISI( ‘UOPELZYIOUWY PIAE[NWNIIY
- paIjuy 10mSIq
syuounsn(py poLdg Ioug
STO‘9TT0LT L86°6€€ 1€°0¢ 616°C20°€ L¥8°T01°€E 1€0°029°€91 IeaL Jo SuTuurSaq ‘UONRLZNIOUIY PI)RNUINIIY
S06‘1HE961 982°990°1 yIv0L 9L6v01°01 TsLzeiel L96V8E'STH 01S°T6S°Ly 1634 JO pud ‘s$2UZ0aJ UL YAOA\ PUE JSOD)
PSESELYT PSESELIT 1ed4 JO pud ‘s$aIZ0.1J Ul YIOA\
1SS°909°6LY 987°990°1 Y1¥°0L 9L6701°01 TSLTTITL £19°6%79°80% 01565 LYy TeaL Jo pud )s0)
T1€°60S - 098°8 €67°971 8STPSE - -
- PpaIju 10ISI
- T80 X SuLm(y umop/JJo-uonLipm
T1£°60S - 098°8 €67 971 8S1°vS€ s[esodsi(q powa(y
- Jo pasodsiq
19s80100(J
0,9°078°8 - - YLS'S65°T 1S€°58Y €1980S°S TEI'IET
- $S0I301 UI JIOA\ WOIJ POLIQJSULI],
- parduy 1O1SIq
STL06T STL06T S1EWNS3 9} 03 UONIPPY -0V
- - - - - - - [ende) [eoo]
- - - - - - - spun, asodind [eroadg
ELTESTT - - TEYSTIIT 09T°L¥T - (615°6) pun Suneredo
€6€°6L9 - - - €80°79¢ 6S9°9L1 159°0%C o - onueAdy [ende) pauejo(
6LTL6S"9 - - 6oLy 1 801°9L 6TC1V0°S - Me[Aq - onuoasy [ende) parReq
oI} SOSeyoIng
10SB0IOU]
Ied X 1) 10J saguey))
T61°S6T LY 987°990°1 YLT'6L $69°S9°L 65S°166°11 000°T¥1°€0Y 8LETIE LY Pa3e)sal se “xedk Jo Suruuidaq yso)
z PaIJuA OIISI
syuounsn(py poLg Ioug
T61°S6T LY 987°990°1 vLT 6L $69°6S9°L 6SS°166°T1 000°T¥1°€0Y 8LETIE LY Tea£ Jo Suruurdaq Is0)
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
[eroL drempieH 318M)JOS SIIIYIA jwwdmby sguipping SIS
1nduo) 1ndwo) pue danyruin g

(panpneun) vV ANpayds

$T0T ‘0€ dunf papug Jesx
syossy ende) o[qidue],

(IPBMITIIYD) €€ "ON PLISI [00YdS



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Schedule 4B (Unaudited)

Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Furniture and Computer Computer
Buildings Equipment Software Hardware Total
$ $ $ $ $
Work in Progress, beginning of year 3,913,808 - - - 3,913,808
Prior Period Adjustments
District Entered -
Work in Progress, beginning of year, as restated 3,913,808 - - - 3,913,808

Changes for the Year
Increase:

Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 12,821,546 - - - 12,821,546
Deferred Capital Revenue - Other - - - - -
Operating Fund - - - - -
Special Purpose Funds - - - - -
Local Capital - - - - -
District Entered -

12,821,546 - - - 12,821,546

Decrease:
Transferred to Tangible Capital Assets - - - - -
District Entered -

Net Changes for the Year 12,821,546 - - - 12,821,546

Work in Progress, end of year 16,735,354 - - - 16,735,354

DRAFT - Not Finalized Page 21



School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Sehedule 4C (Unaudited)

Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2025
Bylaw Other Other Total
Capital Provincial Capital Capital
$ $ $ $
Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 228,066,743 1,107,648 4,297,585 233,471,976
Prior Period Adjustments
District Entered -
Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year, as restated 228,066,743 1,107,648 4,297,585 233,471,976
Changes for the Year
Increase:
Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Capital Additions 6,597,279 246,374 192,368 7,036,021
Transferred from Work in Progress -
District Entered -
District Entered -
6,597,279 246,374 192,368 7,036,021
Decrease:
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 10,019,213 45,535 228,376 10,293,124
Revenue Recognized on Disposal of Buildings - - - -
Revenue Recognized on Write-off/down of Buildings - - - -
District Entered -
District Entered -
10,019,213 45,535 228,376 10,293,124
Net Changes for the Year (3,421,934) 200,839 (36,008) (3,257,103)
Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 224,644,809 1,308,487 4,261,577 230,214,873
Work in Progress, beginning of year 3,913,808 - - 3,913,808
Prior Period Adjustments
District Entered -
Work in Progress, beginning of year, as restated 3,913,808 - - 3,913,808
Changes for the Year
Increase
Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Work in Progress 12,821,546 - - 12,821,546
District Entered -
12,821,546 - - 12,821,546
Decrease
Transferred to Deferred Capital Revenue -
District Entered -
Net Changes for the Year 12,821,546 - - 12,821,546
Work in Progress, end of year 16,735,354 - - 16,735,354
Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 241,380,163 1,308,487 4,261,577 246,950,227

DRAFT - Not Finalized Page 22



€7 93eq

poreutdioN - T VA

17€7€99 L88‘ET ¥88°6+0°9 $17°89 9€E°T6h 1834 Jo pud ‘douefeyg
19L°88% S98°1 Y08°L61 (zeL) ¥18°68C AB3 X 3y} 10} saguey) PN
SLY‘901‘€T 89€°T61 159°0%C YLEOYT 8TLIY'TT

- paIojug osIq
LSY'800°€ - - - LSH*800°€ pasiende)) JoN syuowooxduwy Ao

- - - - - uoneSIqO JUSWAINIY JOSSY JO JUSW[IIAS - SNUOAIY 0) PALIOJSULI],
1S9°0¥T - 1S9°0¥C - - S3SBYIINJ 9IS - SNUIAIY 0) PALIJSURI],

9PS IT8TI - - 9rST1T8CI SS2I501 UL SHOA - YO 01 PILIJSUBL],
120°9€0°L 89€°T61 YLEOYT 6LT°L6S9 suonIppy [ende) - YD 03 parrdysuer],

19582109 (]

9¢b°S6S €T €ETYO1 SSP8eY TS9°SHT 960°L1LTT

- paIoug JosIq

- paioyug JosIq
000°s9 000°59 suoneuo(

- mejAqg (woiy) paornsay DDHIN 01 snjdans joofoxd 1oysuer],

- [esods1I uo Spagooid JO uonIod pajoLlsay DIHIN

6LV V1T - 6LY'V1T SUWIOOU] JUSWSIAU]
607°€SE €eciocl 9L6°€TT RENITQ)

- - I0U)Q - SIUBID) [BIOUIAOL]
8YLT96°TT TS9°sHT 960°L1LTT 218D P[IYD PuE UOHEINDH JO ALSIUIIA] - SJUBID) [BIOUIAOI]

:9seaIOU]

Jed X 9y} J10j saguey))
09S°SH1°9 70T 080°TS8°S 9€6°89 TTST0T PaIE)saa s “aedf Jo Suruuidaq duerey
- paioyug JosIq

syuounsn(py poL IoLg
09S°SH1°9 Teoce 080°CS8°S 9€6°89 Teseot 1834 Jo Supuuidaq ‘dduereg
$ $ $ $ $ $
g0, ende) rende) ende) rende) ende)
RYPO pue| [eUIA0L] PILYSIY Mmelhgq
PPo 00 LCIAN

(payipneun) qy AMpaYds

$T0T “0¢ dunf papug 1ed X
onuoAdy rende) pasryo juadsun ur saduey)

CIPRMIIIYD) €€ "ON 1ILNSI [00YdS



The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Chilliwack
School District

DECISION REPORT
Regular Board Meeting

DATE: September 23, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Simone Sangster, Secretary Treasurer

RE: ANNUAL FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL PLAN, 2026-27 — MINOR CAPITAL
RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack), in accordance with provisions under
section 142(4) of the School Act, hereby approves the proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (Minor Capital
Programs) for 2026/27, as provided on the Five-Year Capital Plan Summary for 2026/27 submitted to
the Ministry of Infrastructure. A copy of this document is attached to this report. Resolution No.R2026-02

2. THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack), in accordance with provisions under
section 142(4) of the School Act, hereby approves the proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (School Food
Infrastructure Program) for 2026/27, as provided on the Five-Year Capital Plan Summary for 2026/27
submitted to the Ministry of Infrastructure. A copy of this document is attached to this report.

Resolution No.R2026-03

3. THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack), in accordance with provisions under
section 142(4) of the School Act, hereby approves the proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (Building
Envelope Program) for 2026/27, as provided on the Five-Year Capital Plan Summary for 2026/27
submitted to the Ministry of Infrastructure. A copy of this document is attached to this report.

Resolution No.R2026-01

BACKGROUND:

The Ministry of Infrastructure requires that boards of education submit capital plans annually for its review.
These are used by the Ministry to determine which priority capital projects will be included in the Ministry’s
Capital Plan for the following fiscal year. The capital plan submissions also provide the Ministry with
important insight into future year capital priorities, which can be used for longer term government planning
and the determination of potential future capital funding requirements for the public education system.

In June 2025, the board approved resolutions describing the following programs:

Major Capital Programs:
e Seismic Mitigation Program (SMP)

Partners in Learning!



Decision Report — Annual Five-Year Capital Plan 2026-27 - Minor Capital
2025-09-23

e School Expansion Program (EXP)

e School Replacement Program (REP)
The Minor and Major Capital submissions are due September 30 and the Food Infrastructure Program on
October 1. These programs are as follows due September 30:

Minor Capital Programs:
e School Enhancement Program (SEP)
e Carbon Neutral Capital Program (CNCP)
e Bus Acquisition Program (BUS)
¢ Playground Equipment Program (PEP)
Major Capital Program
e Building Envelope Program (BEP)

And October 1
e School Food Infrastructure Program (FIP)

The attachments to this report include the Ministry resolution template used for our submissions. These are
requests for possible work in 2026/27 and are not approved. Moreover, the dollar amounts are best
estimates and indicative of expected costs. The plan and board resolution provide the Ministry with an
indication of what is important and the order of priority.

Once the assessment of capital plan submissions from all school districts has been completed by the
Ministry, and the provincial Budget has been formally announced by the Province, the Ministry will notify
each school district with a written response regarding its board’s Capital Plan submission.

A board-adopted bylaw is not required at this point in the annual Capital Plan process as the projects are
proposed. We will return to the board early in 2026 with Bylaw resolutions, once the Ministry has identified
which, if any, projects are funded.



Ministry of
BRITISH Education and
COLUMBIA = Child Care

Submission Summary:

Report run: Wednesday, September 3, 2025

Submission Summary

Minor 2026/2027 | 2025-09-30 | MAIN -
K12

Submission Category Sum Total Funding
Requested

Run By: # Tom Nichols

Submission Type: Capital Plan
PEP $600,000
School District: Chilliwack (SD33
( ) CNCP $3,218,859
Open Date: 2025-04-07 BUS $827,175
Close Date: 2025-09-30 BEP $0
C . SEP $2,100,368
Submission Status: Draft
Total $6,746,402
SD Category  Project Number Facility/Site Project Type Project Description Total Funding
Rank Requested
1 159267 Chilliwack Middle School Renovation (BEP) Building Envelope $4,288,000
2 154261 Mount Slesse Middle School Renovation (BEP) Building Envelope $1.732,000
Submission Category Total:
SD Category  Project Number Facility/Site Project Type Project Description Total Funding
Rank Requested
1 163388 Transportation Replacement Replacement Bus $186,067
2 151859 Transportation Replacement Replacement Bus $247,082
3 151861 Transportation Replacement Replacement Bus $247,082
4 159555 Transportation New (BUS) New Route Required $146,944
Submission Category Total: $827,175
Source: CAPS Page 1 of 3



Ministry of
BRITISH Education and
COLUMBIA = Child Care

SD Category  Project Number
Rank

1 167822
159489
163039
167769
171189

a b W N

SD Category  Project Number

Rank
1 154465
2 158483
3 162617

SD Category  Project Number

Rank
1 167778
2 171203
3 171201
4 171202
5 171204

Source: CAPS

Submission Summary

Total Funding
Requested

Facility/Site

Cheam Elementary
Chilliwack Middle School
McCammon Elementary
A D Rundle Middle School

Leary Integrated Arts & Technology
Elementary

Facility/Site

Cultus Lake Community School
Unsworth Elementary

Strathcona Elementary

Facility/Site

Chilliwack Central Elementary
Community

Mount Slesse Middle
Mount Slesse Middle
Sardis Secondary

Mount Slesse Middle

Project Type

HVAC (CNCP)
HVAC (CNCP)
HVAC (CNCP)
HVAC (CNCP)
HVAC (CNCP)

Project Type

Replacement (PEP)
Replacement (PEP)
Replacement (PEP)

Project Type

HVAC (SEP)

Roofing (SEP)
Roofing (SEP)

Interior Construction
(SEP)

Interior Construction
(SEP)

HVAC Upgrade Phase 2 - Roof top unit replacement.

HVAC Upgrade Phase 1 - Boiler replacement.

HVAC Upgrade Phase 1 - Roof top unit replacement.

HVAC Upgrade Phase 1 - Boiler and ventilation Upgrade/replacment.
HVAC Upgrade Phase 1 - Furnace replacement with heat pumps.

PEP

Equipment at end of life and unable to source replacement parts.
Equipment at end of life and unable to source replacement parts.

Equipment at end of life and unable to source replacement parts.

SEP

HVAC Upgrade Phase 1

Roof Replacement
Roof Replacement

Flooring Replacement

Flooring Replacement

Project Description

Project Description

Project Description

Report run: Wednesday, September 3, 2025
Run By: # Tom Nichols

Submission Category Total:

$595,350

$1,190,700

$582,120
$550,368
$300,321

$3,218,859

Total Funding
Requested

Submission Category Total:

$200,000
$200,000
$200,000

$600,000

Total Funding
Requested

Page 2 of 3

$550,368

$700,000
$350,000
$275,000

$225,000



Ministry of
BRITISH Education and
COLUMBIA = Child Care

Submission Summary:

Submission Type:
School District:
Open Date:

Close Date:

Submission Status:

Report run: Monday, September 8, 2025
Run By: # Tom Nichols

Submission Summary

Submission Category Sum Total Funding
Requested

Minor 2026/2027 | 2025-10-01 | FIP

Capital Plan

Chilliwack (SD33) SEP $80,000
Total $80,000

2025-04-07

2025-10-01

Draft

SD Category  Project Number Facility/Site Project Type Project Description Total Funding
Rank Requested

1 171304 Imagine High Arts and Technology Food Infrastructure Commercial kitchen infrastructure upgrade $25,000
(SEP)

2 171305 Sardis Secondary Food Infrastructure Commercial kitchen infrastructure upgrade $25,000
(SEP)

3 171306 A D Rundle Middle School Food Infrastructure Kitchen improvements and infrastructure upgrades. $30,000
(SEP)

Source: CAPS

Submission Category Total:

Page 1 of 1

$80,000



Chilliwack
School District

RESOLUTION NO.R2026-01 — BUILDING ENVELOPE PROGRAM

In accordance with provisions under section 142 (4) of the School Act, the

Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) hereby approves the
proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (Building Envelope Program) for 2026/27, as
provided on the Five-Year Capital Plan Summary for 2026/27 submitted to the

Ministry of Infrastructure.

| hereby certify this to be a true copy of the resolution for the approval of the
proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (Building Envelope Program) for 2026/27
adopted by the Board of Education, on this the 23 day of September 2025.

Secretary Treasurer Signature

Secretary Treasurer Name

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack, BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | Fax 604.792.9665 | htip://www.sd33.bc.ca/



Chilliwack
School District

RESOLUTION NO.R2026-03 -
SCHOOL FOOD INFRASTRUCTURE POGRAM

In accordance with provisions under section 142 (4) of the School Act, the
Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) hereby approves the
proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (School Food Infrastructure Program) for
2026/27, as provided on the Five-Year Capital Plan Summary for 2026/27

submitted to the Ministry of Infrastructure.

| hereby certify this to be a true copy of the resolution for the approval of the
proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (School Food Infrastructure Program) for
2026/27 adopted by the Board of Education, on this the 23 day of September
2025.

Secretary Treasurer Signature

Secretary Treasurer Name

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack, BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | Fax 604.792.9665 | htip://www.sd33.bc.ca/



Chilliwack
School District

RESOLUTION NO.R2026-02 — MINOR CAPITAL PROGRAMS

In accordance with provisions under section 142 (4) of the School Act, the
Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) hereby approves the
proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (Minor Capital Programs) for 2026/27, as
provided on the Five-Year Capital Plan Summary for 2026/27 submitted to the

Ministry of Infrastructure.

| hereby certify this to be a true copy of the resolution for the approval of the
proposed Five-Year Capital Plan (Minor Capital Programs) for 2026/27
adopted by the Board of Education, on this the 23 day of September 2025.

Secretary Treasurer Signature

Secretary Treasurer Name

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack, BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | Fax 604.792.9665 | htip://www.sd33.bc.ca/



The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Chilliwack
School District

DECISION REPORT
Regular Board Meeting

DATE: September 23, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Simone Sangster, Secretary Treasurer

RE: PROPERTY DISPOSAL BYLAWS, (STATUTORY RIGHTS OF WAY) FOR
STITO:S

RECOMMENDATION:

School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Stité:s La:lém Toti:It Elementary / Middle School Municipal Storm
Drainage Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-01D

1. THAT the Board approve three readings of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Stit6:s La:lém Toti:lIt
Elementary / Middle School Municipal Storm Drainage Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-01D.

2. THAT the Board approve first, second and third reading and adopts School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)
Stitd:s La:lém Toti:lt Elementary / Middle School Municipal Storm Drainage Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025,
No. B2025-01D.

School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) ) Stito:s La:lém Toti:lt Elementary / Middle School Municipal
Works Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-02D

1. THAT the Board approve three readings of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Stit6:s La:lém Toti:lIt
Elementary / Middle School Municipal Works Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-02D.

2. THAT the Board approve first, second and third reading and adopts School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)
Stitd:s La:Iém Toti:It Elementary / Middle School Municipal Works Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-
02D.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Chilliwack has asked the Board to grant statutory rights-of-way at 5337 Tyson Road, for the
city’s use:

a. as access to storm and sanitary sewer (No. B2025-01D)

b. as system conveying and metering of water usage (Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-02D)

Granting these rights-of-way will provide a benefit to the entire community, ensuring improved access and
services for the citizens of Chilliwack.

10f2
Partners in Learning!



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
STITO:S LA:LEM TOTi:LT ELEMENTARY / MIDDLE SCHOOL MUNICIPAL STORM DRAINAGE
RIGHT-OF-WAY BYLAW, 2025, No. B2025-01D

WHEREAS a board of education may dispose of land or improvements owned or administered by the
board of education under the authority of Section 96(3) of the School Act (British Columbia), subject to
the Orders of the British Columbia Minister of Education and Child Care (the “Minister”);

AND WHEREAS the Interpretation Act (British Columbia) defines the word “dispose” to mean to transfer
by any method and includes, among other things, grant and charge;

AND WHEREAS the Minister issued Disposal of Land or Improvements Order (Ministerial Order M193/08)
(the “Order”), effective September 3, 2008, requiring disposal of land or improvements by sale and
transfer in fee simple and leases of land or improvements for a term of ten years or more to be
specifically approved by the Minister, unless such disposal is to another board of education, a
francophone education authority or an independent school;

AND WHEREAS a disposal of land orimprovements by way of a grant of a statutory right of way does not
require approval from the Minister pursuant to the Order;

AND WHEREAS Section 65(5) of the School Act (British Columbia) requires a board of education to
exercise a power with respect to the acquisition or disposal of property owned or administered by the
board of education only by bylaw;

AND WHEREAS:

A. The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) (the “Board”) is the owner of the
Stitd:s La:lém Toti:lt Elementary / Middle School Site located at 5337 Tyson Road, Chilliwack,
British Columbia and legally described as follows:

Parcel Identifier: 028-672-801
Legal Description: LOT 2 SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP 23 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT
PLAN EPP13403

(the “Property”);
B. the Property is facility number ___3333046;

C. the City of Chilliwack (the “City”) has requested that the Board grant to it a statutory right of
way (the “Right of Way”) for a municipal storm sewer drainage system through that portion of
the Property shown in bold outline on Explanatory Plan EPP130036, a reduced copy of which is
attached hereto as Schedule A;

D. the Board is satisfied that it would be in the best interest of the Board to grant the Right of Way
to the City; and

E. the Board has determined and hereby confirms that the grant of the Right of Way will not
interfere with the Board’s use of the Property and will neither conflict with nor detract from the

No. B2025-01D



-2-

regular or extracurricular program of a school or the current or future educational needs of
School District No. 33 (Chilliwack).

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as a Bylaw of the Board that the Board enter into the Right of Way
and grant the Right of Way to the City in the form required by the City, subject to such amendments as
the Secretary Treasurer may, in his or her discretion, consider advisable, and register the Right of Way
against title to the Property in the applicable Land Title Office.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED as a Bylaw of the Board that the Secretary Treasurer be and is hereby
authorized, on behalf of the Board, to execute and deliver the Right of Way in such form and with such
amendments thereto as the Secretary Treasurer may, in his or her discretion, consider advisable, and
the Secretary Treasurer be and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Board, to execute and deliver all
related and ancillary documents and all other documents required to complete the granting of the Right
of Way to the City on such terms and conditions as the Secretary Treasurer may, in his or her discretion,
consider advisable as witnessed by the signature of the Secretary Treasurer.

This Bylaw may be cited as “School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Stitd:s La:lém Toti:lt Elementary /
Middle School Municipal Storm Drainage Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-01D

Read a first time this 23 day of September, 2025.
Read a second time this 23" day of September, 2025.

Upon unanimous agreement of the Trustees of the Board in attendance, this Bylaw was read a third
time on the 23" day of September, 2025, and finally passed and adopted this 23 day of September,
2025.

Chairperson of the Board

Corporate Seal

Secretary Treasurer

| HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of the School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Stit6:S La:Lém
Toti:Lt Elementary / Middle School Municipal Storm Drainage Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-01D,
adopted on the 23 day of September, 2025.

Secretary Treasurer

No. B2025-01D



-3-

SCHEDULEA
STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY AREA

STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY PLAN
OVER PART OF LOT 2 SECTION 1,

TOWNSHIP 23, NEW WESTMINSTER

DISTRICT PLAN EPP13403.

PURSUANT IO SECTION 113 OF THE LAND TITLE ACT

B.CGS 892H001

5 2.5 1] 5
Al Distances are in Metres,
The intended plot size of this plan is
280mm n width by 432mm in height
(B size} whern plotted ot a scale of 1: 250

10

LEGEND:

PLAN FEPP130036

@ Dengies Standord lron Pest found

Grid bearings are derived from differential dual frequency GNSS
observations and are referred to the cenfral meridion of UTM
Zerve 10 {123 West Longrude)

Thiz plan shows horizental ground—level distances unless
otherwise specified. To compute grd distonces, multiply
ground—level distances by the oweroge combined foctor of
0.9936654. Tha average combined factor has baen detarminad
based on g mean ellipsoldd elevation of 12 meires

The UTM coordinates ond estimated horizental positional accurocy
achieved are denved from dual frequency GNSS observations
pest—processed by Naturd Rescdres Canada's PPP serviee,
Umderwater Land Swrveying

BE.C. Land Smrvevors

H104 - SE30 176 A" Sirect

Clowerdale B.OC,

WWW.ONDERWATER.CA

FILE: JCWIE—D9_RWZ2

This Plan Lies Within The
Fraser Valley Regional Distriet

Datum:  HADES (CSRE)[2002.0]
B Denotes Lead Flag fourd UTW Zone 10 .
& Denctes Traverse Point found. UTW Northing  5439008.612
JTW Easting  S74756.458
Absdute occuracy is 0,04 metres,
SCREEE MARK 1 ,.Jf T
R ’ - /
e T - K
{-F‘..‘] - i
d{@ * !
- i
%\_\, - .
éfgex:d”/ =L ¥
e <
i T e T T T T T i
- | % B
Y = . w 2
3 = 420 — - = ); 3%'?
- = o oE
PLAN EPP13403 _q,.:-.\s;"' = "
P -8 1
e

i E03 N
Daturm:  NADAS (CERS)[2002.0] '9'5%?'9.-‘
UTK Fore 10 .
UTH Horthing  5438584.602 2 1
UTM Eosting 574704681 | .
Abzalute occuracy is 0.04 metres. PLAN EPPIZ403 - A |
= PLAN EPP22598 |
. 3
QEEL}‘ : = |
! % [
N I |
&S |
Qe

The field survey represented by this plan was
completed cn the 20th day of Jupe, 2023
Matthew C. Onderwater, BCLS #BOS

-01D




THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
STITO:S LA:LEM TOTi:LT ELEMENTARY / MIDDLE SCHOOL MUNICIPAL WORKS
RIGHT-OF-WAY BYLAW, 2025, No. B2025-02D

WHEREAS a board of education may dispose of land or improvements owned or administered by the
board of education under the authority of Section 96(3) of the School Act (British Columbia), subject to
the Orders of the British Columbia Minister of Education and Child Care (the “Minister”);

AND WHEREAS the Interpretation Act (British Columbia) defines the word “dispose” to mean to transfer
by any method and includes, among other things, grant and charge;

AND WHEREAS the Minister issued Disposal of Land or Improvements Order (Ministerial Order M193/08)
(the “Order”), effective September 3, 2008, requiring disposal of land or improvements by sale and
transfer in fee simple and leases of land or improvements for a term of ten years or more to be
specifically approved by the Minister, unless such disposal is to another board of education, a
francophone education authority or an independent school;

AND WHEREAS a disposal of land or improvements by way of a grant of a statutory right of way does not
require approval from the Minister pursuant to the Order;

AND WHEREAS Section 65(5) of the School Act (British Columbia) requires a board of education to
exercise a power with respect to the acquisition or disposal of property owned or administered by the
board of education only by bylaw;

AND WHEREAS:

A. The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) (the “Board”) is the owner of the
Stitd:s La:lém Toti:lt Elementary / Middle School Site located at 5337 Tyson Road, Chilliwack,
British Columbia and legally described as follows:

Parcel Identifier: 028-672-801
Legal Description: LOT 2 SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP 23 NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT
PLAN EPP13403

(the “Property”);
B. the Property is facility number ___3333046;

C. the City of Chilliwack (the “City”) has requested that the Board grant to it a statutory right of
way (the “Right of Way”) for a municipal Works through that portion of the Property shown in
bold outline on Explanatory Plan EPP130036, a reduced copy of which is attached hereto as
Schedule A;

D. the Board is satisfied that it would be in the best interest of the Board to grant the Right of Way
to the City; and

E. the Board has determined and hereby confirms that the grant of the Right of Way will not
interfere with the Board’s use of the Property and will neither conflict with nor detract from the

No. B2025-02D



-2-

regular or extracurricular program of a school or the current or future educational needs of
School District No. 33 (Chilliwack).

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as a Bylaw of the Board that the Board enter into the Right of Way
and grant the Right of Way to the City in the form required by the City, subject to such amendments as
the Secretary Treasurer may, in his or her discretion, consider advisable, and register the Right of Way
against title to the Property in the applicable Land Title Office.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED as a Bylaw of the Board that the Secretary Treasurer be and is hereby
authorized, on behalf of the Board, to execute and deliver the Right of Way in such form and with such
amendments thereto as the Secretary Treasurer may, in his or her discretion, consider advisable, and
the Secretary Treasurer be and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Board, to execute and deliver all
related and ancillary documents and all other documents required to complete the granting of the Right
of Way to the City on such terms and conditions as the Secretary Treasurer may, in his or her discretion,
consider advisable as witnessed by the signature of the Secretary Treasurer.

This Bylaw may be cited as “School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Stitd:s La:lém Toti:lt Elementary /
Middle School Municipal Works Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-02D”.

Read a first time this 23 day of September, 2025.
Read a second time this 23 day of September, 2025.

Upon unanimous agreement of the Trustees of the Board in attendance, this Bylaw was read a third
time on the 23" day of September, 2025, and finally passed and adopted this 23 day of September,
2025.

Chairperson of the Board

Corporate Seal

Secretary Treasurer

| HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of the School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) Stit6:S La:Lém
Toti:Lt Elementary / Middle School Municipal Works Right-of-Way Bylaw, 2025, No. B2025-02D, adopted
on the 23" day of September, 2025.

Secretary Treasurer

No. B2025-02D



SCHEDULE A
STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY AREA

STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY PLAN OVER PART OF PLAN EPP130035
LOT 2 PLAN EPP13403, AND PART OF LOT 203, 3

PLAN EPP59355 ALL OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 23, | RN D 7 8

NEW WESTMINSTER DISTRICT. FCL B LR st mm

FORSULNT 10 SECTION 119 OF TEE LU ITTTE AT N L

BCGS. 92H 001 Wmﬁ I e

LEGRND | 7
@ Oauies Standed Coperete Pus fornd

Eo

FIND Dueées roviondy Tid e Dasinped
#fa Dmates Gor A1

This Fia shaws tha of rers wiess sty
thar e 101wt the n ceman. Dol A ek e

s ppisin)

meara
T toe.
(,.
sz

TYSON ROAD

e ]
I 7 10

I hary bt

I Eatey 74T st

A dariy b 004 wahes
N
Py REW A
e L == o fn

IE_.E.;. 7
. —— ww
- e .
e i —_— = ~—
o Promnd
- F
TR e T
R L e
i | R
| | S
[
PLAR KPP
i
i !
| ! — ;
. i !
T 1
S i
~ | H
~ |
~ | i REM A
- . i m . Ay
S
- N
e i B !
- i ,
T i
T |
= |
- i -
" !
. i
~. | H
~. |
et e s I
! p——"r
a2 !
H |
i !
H |
| e
E T - i
Fa wceseass — i [ comurr pan Bt
~——_ i i
TT— [ : —
Gild beaings are derlesd from A%ersntal dud Tequncy ONGS
sbesrerions il e retured 52 the sntral merdkn o UTY
Tot 00 (120 Waat Longhude).
This Plag liss Withi Ths The Bdd sirvey rprssended by e plm wm
Framer Valler Segional Distric! heted op the it ot apa. J07

Urthew C Ondireat, BOS 05

No. B2025-02D




The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Chilliwack
School District

DECISION REPORT
Regular Board Meeting

DATE: September 23, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Simone Sangster, Secretary Treasurer
RE: SIGNING AUTHORITY
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Board of Education approve Resolution No. R2026-04 - Signing Authority as attached.
BACKGROUND:

The Board of Education’s Policy 620 — Signing Authorities outlines who is authorized to sign on behalf of the
district, ensuring proper oversight in financial and contractual matters. Occasionally, external partners or
regulatory bodies require a formal Board of Directors Resolution confirming the Board’s explicit approval of
specific signing authorities.

Reason for Current Request:

While the existing policy already delegates signing authority, this resolution provides a formal, board-
approved statement to meet the expectations of certain partners and stakeholders. It is specifically required
at this time due to the vacancy in the Assistant Secretary Treasurer position, changes in board leadership
and staffing changes. Doing this will ensure that signing authority remains clear, compliant, and
uninterrupted.

Purpose of the Resolution:
e Meet requests or legal requirements from external partners.
o Align with legal or regulatory standards beyond the district’s internal policy.
o Demonstrate the Board’s support for delegated signing authority during the vacancy.
Implications:
Approval of this resolution does not change the current Signing Authorities Policy. It simply documents the

adjusted signing authority due to the changes noted, helping maintain compliance, meet external
requirements, and support ongoing partnerships.



Chilliwack
School District

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 33 (CHILLIWACK)
SIGNING AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO.R2026-04

WHEREAS from time to time the Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) is
required to apply signatures to formal legal and other documents which documents must
be signed by authorized signatories.

AND WHEREAS the board of education has adopted Policy 620 identifying the authorized
signatories in various circumstances, including as follows: “For contracts and other legal
documents requiring two officers of the Board, the signing officers shall be any two of the
following: the Superintendent of Schools, the Secretary Treasurer or the Assistant
Secretary Treasurer”;

ITIS RESOLVED THAT the Board of Education authorizes and approves the following
officers to sign, execute, endorse and deliver contracts and other legal documents:

Superintendent Rohan Arul-pragasam
Secretary Treasurer Simone Sangster
Assistant Secretary Treasurer Vacant

| certify this to be a true copy of the resolution for the designation of staff with signing
authority adopted by The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack) on this
23" day of September, 2025.

Simone Sangster, Secretary Treasurer
The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack, BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | Fax 604.792.9665 | htip://www.sd33.bc.ca/



The Board of Education of School District No. 33 (Chilliwack)

Chilliwack
School District

DECISION REPORT
Regular Board Meeting

DATE: September 23, 2025

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Rohan Arul-pragasam, Superintendent

RE: INITIATION OF BARRIER SCAN ON EDUCATION POLICY ADVISORY

COMMITTEE (EPAC) POLICIES

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Board of Education direct the Superintendent to initiate a barrier scan of all Education Policy
Advisory Committee (EPAC) policies (Sections 200 and 300 of the Policy Manual), in alignment with Board
Policy 161, with the goal of completing this review by June 2026.

BACKGROUND:

The Chilliwack Board of Education is responsible for formulating policies under which the District functions
and for ensuring they remain current, functional, and accessible. Since December 2020, the District has
undertaken and completed a comprehensive review of all Board policies and administrative procedures. As
per Board Policy 161, the next step in this work is to conduct a barrier scan of the Education Policy Advisory
Committee (EPAC) policies.

This work aligns with the District’'s Accessibility Plan and is informed by the Accessible Communications
Checklist, ensuring all policies are clear, inclusive, and aligned with the principles of equity, Truth and
Reconciliation, and the Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act (DRIPA).

ANALYSIS:

e Scope of Work:
o Policies under review are all Section 200 (Partner & Community Relations) and Section 300
(Students, Instruction & Programs) policies — a total of 33 policies.
o These will be reviewed through a barrier-free accessibility lens, ensuring alignment with
Legislation, Ministry standards, and the SD33 Accessibility Plan.

o Timeline:
o Barrier scan work will begin immediately and proceed according to the established EPAC
schedule below.
o Policies will first be reviewed by EPAC, then shared in draft form with the Board of
Education, before being brought forward for decision at a public Board meeting.

Partners in Learning!
10f2



Decision Report — Initiation of Barrier Scan on Policies

Regular Board Meeting - 2025-09-23

Policies
310, 311 and 312
313, 371, 383, 373
314, 315, and 320
380, 372, and 340
370, 360, 361, 321
322, 390, 280, 270
382, 210, 290, 291
220, 221, 230,231
240, 250, 260, 261

e Future Work:

EPAC Meeting
September 29
October 27
November 24
December 15
January 26
February 23
March 30
April 27
May 25

Board Meeting
October 14
November 18
December 9
January 27
February 17
March 10
April 21
May 19
June 16

o Following the 2026 municipal elections, in consultation with the new Board of Education
(November 2026), staff will develop a schedule and timeline to continue the barrier scan on
the remaining sections of the policy manual, beginning with the 100 Governance section.

Partners in Learning!

20f2



Chilliwack
School District

Accessible Communications Checklist

In alignment with SD33’s Accessibility Plan, this checklist is designed to assist with creating accessible
communications, including:

e Policies and Administrative Procedures

e Site-based and other Guiding Documents

e Visuals and Presentation Materials (posters, slideshows, videos, etc.)
o Websites and other External Communications

Written Communication (general accessibility considerations)

Plain language — Purpose, Audience and Structure:
e |stheintention clear and specific?
L] e Whois the target audience?
e |stheinformation organized to serve the reader’s needs?
Examples included in Appendix A.
Plain Language — Design and Expression:
e Use a conversational tone with the active voice in the present tense.
e Write at a Grade 8 reading level or lower (Grade Level Checker).

e Use simple, common words.
e Keep sentences short.
L] e Define and/or spell-out abbreviations and acronyms.
e Consider alternatives to paragraphs (use bullet points, lists and tables).
e Use descriptive headings.
e Avoid using all capital letters (for example, use “policy” instead of “POLICY”).
Examples included in Appendix A.
Use inclusive language:
e Gender neutral
[] .
e Person-centric
Examples included in Appendix B.
Include hyperlinks, where applicable (ensure the links are active):
] e Relevant Policies, Administrative Procedures or other documents.
e Relevant Legislation, Regulations, or other guidelines/directives.

Policies, Administrative Procedures and Guiding Documents

The document includes:
e Aclear and specific purpose.
e Implementation procedures.
[] e Title.
e Headings (where possible, headings should be embedded in the document — see Appendix B).
e Bullet points, lists and/or tables.

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | http://www.sd33.bc.ca/ Page 1 0of 6


https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sd33-accessibility-plan
https://hemingwayapp.com/

Chilliwack
School District

e Charts and other visuals that support its readability (see the ‘Visuals and Presentation Materials’
section, below).
e Page numbers (if applicable).

The document is aligned with the District’s Strategic Plan and core values.

The document is aligned with DRIPA (Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act) and TRC (Truth
and Reconciliation Commission) Calls to Action.

The document has gone through an equitable consultation process, where applicable (for example, with
partner groups and/or affected communities).

Itis clear who is responsible for implementing this document (i.e. the District, school administration, a
specific department, etc.).

I I R I

Visuals and Presentation Materials

Use high-contrast colour combinations to make the content easy to see and read (Colour Contrast
Checker).

Only use images that are relevant and add context to the text.

O

Use alternative text (Alt Text) to describe images and visuals for screen readers (see Appendix C).

Avoid using images of text where possible (logos or infographics are ok).

Limit the use of flashing, blinking or animated graphics.

Create transcripts for audio content and captions for video content (see Appendix C).

Ensure all content can be navigated using only a keyboard (for example, to view the Alt Text of an image or
to navigate to a hyperlink).

I I R R O R B

This checklist is to be reviewed on a periodic basis to ensure it stays current and relevant.

Feedback

Please let us know if you have feedback about this checklist by emailing accessibility@sd33.bc.ca:

e Was the checklist easy to understand and use?
o Were the examples provided in the Appendices helpful?
e Do you have any general comments or suggestions about the checklist?

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | http://www.sd33.bc.ca/ Page 2 of 6



https://webaim.org/resources/contrastchecker/
https://webaim.org/resources/contrastchecker/
mailto:accessibility@sd33.bc.ca

Chilliwack
School District

Appendix A

Examples of Plain Language — Purpose, Audience and Structure:

Purpose and Audience:

1. Whatis the purpose? Are you trying to:
e Address a specific need?
e Build aresource?
e Share your knowledge about a topic?

2. Whatis your audience looking for?
e Consider the level of detail your audience needs.
e The more readable, concise and targeted the information is, the more likely the audience will trust it
as avaluable resource.

3. Doyou have more than one audience?
e Consider breaking up the information into sections targeted to each audience, based on the
specific needs of each audience.

4. Consider the reader’s experience in different contexts:
o Will the information be accessible in an emergency situation?
e What if they are overtired, stressed, on a mobile device or on poor internet connection?
e |sthe information easy to navigate and interpret?

Organization and Structure:

e Arrange topics in order so it is easy to follow and understand. For example:
o Chronological order (timeline)
o Sequential (step 1, 2, 3...)
o Hierarchical
e Putthe mostimportant information first.
e Remove redundant or unnecessary sections (think about your audience — are the topics relevant to their
needs?).

Examples of Plain Language — Design and Expression:

Conversational Tone:
Write as if itis a conversation between you and the audience. Be polite and direct. When possible, use first and
second person (you, we, us) instead of third person (they, them, everyone).

Try to write in a positive form, explaining what the reader may or must do instead of what they may or must not do.

Active Voice:
The active voice makes it clear who is responsible for an action. Use the active voice (subject-verb-object) instead
of the passive voice (object-verb-subject). For example:

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | http://www.sd33.bc.ca/ Page 3 of 6



Chilliwack
School District

Instead of this (passive): Say this (active):
e Asrequired under Section B... e Section B requires you to...
Word Choice:

Use simple, common words. Remove words that do no add meaning. For example:

Instead of this: \ SEVAUIEE

Planning for future Planning

Assistance; support Help

Communicate with staff Let staff know

In accordance with According to; in line with
In order to To

In the event of If

Individual Person

Is able to Can

Method Way

Obtain Get

Prior to Before

Provides you with the opportunityto | Letsyou

Request Ask

Requires assistance Needs help

Resultin Cause; make; lead to
Skills and abilities Skills

Utilize; implement Use

Within your ability If you can

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | http://www.sd33.bc.ca/ Page 4 of 6



Chilliwack
School District

Appendix B

Examples of Inclusive Language

Gender Neutral Language:

e Pronouns: use “they” or “them” instead of gender-specific pronouns like “he” or “she”.

e Family and relationship terms: use “parent”, “guardian” or “caregiver” instead of “mother” or “father”.

e Other terms: use generic terms like “chairperson” instead of “chairman” or “maintenance hole” instead of
“manhole”.

Person-centric Language:

e Accessibility terms should be aligned with Human Rights:
o use “person with a disability” or “disabled person” instead of “handicapped”, “differently abled” or
“the disabled”,
o use “wheelchair user” instead of “wheelchair-bound” or “confined to a wheelchair”,
o use “person with mental illness” instead of “mentally ill”, etc.

Embed Headings in a Document
Use the pre-programmed styles in documents (for example, Microsoft Word) to help make the document
accessible.

You may modify the pre-programmed styles but ensure you are using a sans-serif font for accessibility (for
example: Aptos, Calibri, Ariel, etc.).

-~

AaBbCeD AaBbCcD ,&,aBchE

TMormal = T Mo Spac..  Heading 1

Styles |

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | http://www.sd33.bc.ca/ Page 5 of 6



Chilliwack
School District

Appendix C

Alternative Text (Alt Text)

Alt Txt is used to describe the information or function of digital images. It should be clear and concise (try to stay
under 15 words). Do not include “image of” or “photo of” in the Alt Text; screen readers will announce it as an
image.

If using an image that is already described in text, label it as a Decorative Image instead of using Alt Text. For
example:

J Telephone
The telephone image should be labeled as decorative since it is already described in the text.
Transcripts and Closed Captioning (CC)

Transcripts
Transcripts help make audio content accessible. Transcripts should be on the same page as the audio/video
content and should include:

e Allspeech as well as the speakers’ names.
e Relevant non-verbal information in square brackets (for example, [laughing] or [upbeat music]).
e ‘End of transcript’ at the end of the transcript.

Closed Captioning (CC)

It is best to create your own closed captioning. If using an auto-captioning service, make sure you review and edit
to ensure itis clear.

Closed Captioning Checklist:

u Closed captioning must be word for word the same as the spoken, even if the person speaking makes a
mistake (do not skip or change words).

Text should appear as close to the same time as the audio as possible.

Identify who is speaking.

Use a readable font with a solid colour-contrasting background (for example, white font on a solid black
background).

Give users enough time to read the captions.

I

Text should be at the bottom of the screen and cover as little as possible of the visual content.

8430 Cessna Drive, Chilliwack BC, Canada V2P 7K4 | Phone 604.792.1321 | http://www.sd33.bc.ca/ Page 6 of 6



	1.2 Agenda - Regular September 23, 2025
	1.3 Minutes - June 30, 2025
	2.1 Audit Working Committee Report
	2.2 Trustee Written Reports
	2.3 BCSTA Report
	2.4 Indigenous Education Council Report
	4.1 FESL Report
	4.2 Audited Financial Statements
	4.3 Capital Plan 26-27
	4.4 Property Disposal Bylaws
	4.5 Signing Authority
	4.6 Barrier Scan of Policies



